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The company was awarded an accolade of SET Award 2005
from The Stock Exchange of Thailand for 1 of 3 best financial
performance listed company in Telecommunication Industry.
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Mission Statement
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Financial Summary for the Year 2005

JUN1T UGN

JUNNTRURNIZLTEN X

TOTAL REVENUES (Baht)
REVENUES FROM SALES
AND SERVICE (Baht)
GROSS PROFIT (Baht)
NET PROFIT (Baht)
TOTAL ASSETS (Baht)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (Baht)
NET WORTH (Baht)
PROFITABILITY :

Gross profit margin (% )

Net profit ( % )

Teld1an (un)
MeldnnTrewazyinng (um)

finladud (um)

ls (1egw) qnd (um)

funndnn (um)

WHRWTIN (M)

duresdfiouresisn (um)

AnwEw1Inlwnarinals ¢
Sarladudn ( 2 )
Sammls (nanw) qnd ()

HARBLUNUIINNITOY RETURN ON INVESTMENT :
IRATIHARADUUNUIDIEUNING ( % ) Return on total assets (% )
dRTHARDULNYBYRYeEiavik ( % ) Return on equity (%)
5mwamammmmlrmamu (%) Return on investment ( % )

ANNANBILAZANEUANTONUINNT :©  LIQUIDITY & STABILITY :
59157&3%7;@3;1%5&% () Current ratio (Tiems)
sndmnitiudeduregiodiu (i)  Debt to Equity ratio (Times)

Foynsioviu : PER SHARE DATA :
Tnrinanziden Number of shares (Registered)
awuiuIzu Number of shares (Fully paid)
yaeAufinTly (L) Par value (Baht / Share)
yaeviua YT (U Book value (Baht / Share)
ls (aavw) gnd (mwﬁu) Net profit (EPS) (Baht / Share)
Wuluna (Un/vin) Dividends (Baht / Share)

MR TR UV

- ﬁlﬂi:sqmmnﬁmmiu%ﬁw al 1/2549
doTut 22 qﬂmﬁ’uﬁ 2549 fnF UK MIUNAUIZNOUNNT
11 2548 ungfevuvesuisnludnniusz 0.33 U
Tnelhinumasiofisy guaniodioduaded 1/2549
Tl 21 e 2549 Lﬁ'am#ﬂ’ﬁsialﬂ

- nadeEutiuned 2546 ngAATEUTARLY
1000 UmFiaiu waznIneduluwad 2547 uaz
i 2548 mﬂu‘jamﬁuﬁmﬂ% 1.00 UMeavin

-~ U3dnENdarhunadunlud 2547
Lﬁaqmnu%ﬂwL%Naqnuiuu%ﬂ’wéaﬂnWH“luﬂ 2547
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2546/2003 2547/2004 2548/2005) 2547/2004 2548/2005

736,098,294 1,423,321,419 1,277,880,031 1,428,299,821 1,517,539,263

732,722,191 1,414,203,981 1,271,256,952 1,419,169,194 1,508,643,122

223,537,313 361,437,706 298,860,313 361,934,844 356,757,327
70,265,708 134,585,904 76,761,662 134,585,904 76,761,662
620,267,824 1,016,420,497 886,819,557 1,031,185,971 957,608,830
204,877,908 532,944,677 333,135,416 531,403,181 387,853,251
415,389,916 483,475,820 553,684,141 499,782,790 569,755,579
30.51 25.56 23.51 25.50 23.65
9.55 9.46 6.01 9.42 5.06
12.81 16.45 8.07 16.30 7.72
25.02 29.95 14.80 29.41 14.35
11.33 13.24 8.66 13.05 8.02
2.60 1.71 2.05 1.75 2.08
0.49 1.10 0.60 1.06 0.68
200,000,000 200,000,000 227,000,000 200,000,000 227,000,000
200,000,000 200,000,000 217,000,000 200,000,000 217,000,000
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
2.08 2.42 2.55 2.50 2.63
0.61 0.67 0.37 0.67 0.37
62.00 0.33 0.50 0.33 0.50
* Note :

- The Board of Directors' Meeting No. 1/2006
held on 22 February 2006 passed a resolution to pay
devident for the 2005 operating results to shareholders
at a rate of Baht 0.33 per share. The proposal is to be
presented at the Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting
No. 172006 on 21 April 2006 for further approval.

- The divident payments of 2003 were based on par value
of Baht 10 per share. The divident payments of 2004
and 2005 were based on par value of Baht 1 per share

- In 2004 the company prepared consolidated financial
statement since it began investing in subsidiaries

in this year
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Message from Chairman
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The year 2005 was considered the period of readjusting the foundation
for the company's sustainable growth, after experiencing a certain
period of rapid growth as a result of listing in Stock Exchange of
Thailand. It was another static year of most businesses which had to
face several risk factors including the economic slowdown and tougher
business competition in IT business. Apart from such risk factors, the
expansion policies to tap government agencies and educational
institutes which required huge operational cost was considered another
factor that affect the company's business performance to be less than
projected. It was due to declining Gross Profit Margin as a result of

higher cost of operation.

However, despite the business performance last year didn't meet the
target, but with the potentiality and stronger fundamental business
factors, we are confident that the business performance this year will

be better than the year before.

With the solid base for sustainable growth that we have which include
the good basic infrastructure, internal training, human resources
development, intellectual property creation, business and customer base
expansion, strengthening competitive edge to achieve high yield in the
long term, we'll be able to maintain our leadership in the integrated IT

businesses.

Finally, on behalf of the company's Board of Directors, I'd like to thank
everyone that had made great contribution to the company's success
during the past years. They include customers, business partners,
shareholders, executive members as well as all staff who had helped
and provided strong support to the company. We promise that we will
focus on our business philosophy in keeping the ultimate benefits for
all parties concerned; and lead to the company towards the desired

goals along with our promising future.

Wiy guanind
UILHIUNTINNIT
Chareon Usanachitt
Chairman

MFEC ANNUAL REPORT 2005
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Message from CEO and President
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Adirake Patitus

Chief Executive Officer
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The year 2005, the IT industry still had a good growing trend, despite
being affected from economic slowdown due to rising oil price,
increasing interest rates, impact from the tsunami attack, drought, flood,
bird flu and the insurgence in the Southern border provinces which
caused the country's economy to grow only 4.5%. However, the
industry posted 30% growth due to the constant support from the
government policies especially the investment in a number of projects
in line with the e-Government policy, along with such investments from
private sector. With the impacts from declining economy, some
business organizations decided to slow down their investment. Also,
the company's business and customer base expansion policies which
aim at government agencies and educational institutes yielded a smaller
marginal gross profit, resulting in a less-than-projected actual
performance. The company had a total revenue of 1,277.88, with 76.76

in net profit.

Even through the business performance last year was not very

satisfactory, it can be considered that the company has entered the
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stage of readjusting the foundation to achieve a sustainable growth in
the future, after the rocketing growth in previous years, and after being
listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The company still focuses on
laying out strategic plans that lead to future prosperity and strong
business operations such as establishing fundamental structures to
help enhance efficiency to support future business growth. We've also
substantiated the development in various aspects of internal
operations including human resources and knowledge base
development, along with intellectual property initiatives as to maintain
our leadership position in total IT solution business. This also helps
generate more revenue and expand customer base with focus on
the government and educational sectors which have high IT
investment. Furthermore, the merging with Modernform Integration
Services Co., Ltd. last year has helped us to expand the distribution
channels and gain more market share in small and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs), which substantially strengthens our business

operations and enhance efficiency for future competition.

Based on these grounds, we are confident that we are a company of
strong foundation and visionary new-generation people, along with a
nurturing “"client as a partner” relationship mindset and the policy to
expand business by joining with high-potential business partners to
develop unique innovations for solid business expansion. These
factors help build trust and confidence among our customers, partners,
employees, executives, and shareholders with an international
standard of services as to maintain an appropriate level of profits for
shareholders. We also aim to be a 'high performance organization'
and maintain our leadership position in the industry.
Finally, we affirm our commitment to good corporate governance for
ultimate benefits to shareholders and for an even brighter future.
Although we did not achieve an anticipated business performance last
year, the more capabilities and the stronger foundation we gain will
make 2006 a year for improved profit with continued and more
sustainable growth. Again, we would like to thank all parties who take
part in our success; our customers, business partners, shareholders,
employees and management who invigorate and accompany us in

stepping ahead towards a promising future.

-4

A3Tad 29dagnsg

nIINNIRIANTT Ing
Siriwat Vongjarukorn
President
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Company Name
Business Type

Registered Capital

Paid-up Capital

Refistration No.

Head Office

Tel.

Fax.

Development
Center

Tel.
Fax.
Website

MFEC Public Company Limited
IT services and systems integration

Baht 227 million
Baht 217 million

0107546000156 (Old No. 40854600016)

699 Modernform Tower,
Srinakarin Rd., Suanluang,
Bangkok 10250

+66 (0) 2722-8393

+66 (0) 2722-8388

333 Lao Peng Nguan Tower 1,
Soi Choeipuang,
Vibhavadi-Rangsit Rd.,
Chompol, Chatuchak,
Bangkok 10900

+66 (0) 2278-9278
+66 (0) 2278-9279

: www.mfec.co.th
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MFEC Public Company Limited is positioned as a premier IT service
provider specializing in network computing and e-business, serving
mainly large enterprise customers and industry leaders in both
government and private sectors. Our services range from IT
consulting, custom design and develop, training and after sales
services of the solution sets including hardware & software
infrastructures, network equipment and services, software package
customization & enhancement, and custom software development.
Services are tailored to specific user requirements for their unique

business needs.

MFEC's core business can be segregated into 3 main categories i.e. IT

professional Services, Systems Integration and Maintenance Service.

1. 1T Professional Services

MFEC provides complete IT consulting services and solutions
that enable clients to achieve their business objectives and
competitive edge based on their unique business strategy and
need. MFEC's end-to-end enterprise business services focus
on 4 major areas: Enterprise Data Warehouse and Business
Intelligence, Web Applications, Mobile Applications, and Service
Level Management.

2. Systems Integration
MFEC system integration services involve the process of
design, procure, implement computer systems and IT
infrastructures integrating components such as hardware,
software, peripherals and network equipment as per system and
user requirements, test them for compatibility and usage,
provide user training and after-sale maintenance services to

ensure serviceability, reliability, efficiency of the system.

3. Maintenance Service
MFEC provides maintenance and technical support services for
both hardware and software to ensure serviceability at the
service level agreed and acceptable by customers and their end
users. The services include telephone support through help-desk
and hot line numbers, remote diagnostic, onsite stand-by and
trouble-shooting. Add-on services available include problem
analysis workshop and user training and technology update for

new system features and functionalities.
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In 2004 MFEC concluded acquisition plans with 4 Thai soft

ware companies and thus has 4 subsidiaries, as follows :

1. PromptNow Co., Ltd.
MFEC purchased 60 percent of PromptNow Co., Ltd.,
the company with Baht 7.5 million registered capital, with a par
value of Baht 100 per share, in an amount of 45,000 shares or
equal to Baht 4,500,000 investment, on 26 August 2004.
PromptNow's business objectives are to provide consulting and
training services on computer electronic control software and
hardware, and development of entertainment applications on
mobile devices . MFEC's investmentin PromptNow has enriched
its business diversities, especially in mobile contents and

applications market.

2.4Bizinet Co., Ltd.
MFEC acquired 51 percent of Baht 30 million registered capital
company, 4Bizinet Co., Ltd., with a par value of 10 Baht per share,
in an amount of 1,530,000 shares or equal to Baht 15,300,000
investment, on 15 October 2004. 4Bizinet is a software firm who
designs and develops web-based business applications for small
to medium enterprise customers. Its major product range includes
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) solutions,
SmartDesk solutions and Laboratory Information Management
System. This acquisition helped MFEC strengthen market
expansion and diversification into small and medium enterprise

market.

3. Advance Intelligent Modernity Co., Ltd.

MFEC acquired 51 percent shares of Advance Intelligent
Modernity (AIM), a mobile application developer with a registered
capital of Baht 3 million, with a par value of Baht 10 per share, in
an amount of 153,000 shares or equal to Baht 1,530,000
investment, on 19 November 2004. AIM, founded on 9
September 2003, is a provider of entertainment mobile games
and applications, as well as digital contents to several local and

international mobile phone service operators.
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The investment in AIM helped increase MFEC's capacity in
producing high quality mobile games with a production team of
internationally accepted standards, which is a part of constant
investment in intellectual property development. This also set a
pace to become a leading provider of entertainment applications
on mobile devices in local and international markets in the

future.

. Modernform Integration Services Co., Ltd.

MFEC acquired 100 percent shares of Modernform Integration
Services Co., Ltd. (MIS), a company with a registered capital of
Baht 64.13 million, with a par value of Baht 10 per share, in an
amount of 6,412,993 shares or equal to Baht 99.07 million
investment, on 1 June 2005. (MFEC issued new 17,000,000
common shares in exchange of payment, using close price of
MFEC stocks on 1 June 2005 at Baht 5.650 per share, with share
exchange ratio of 2.6508654 new MFEC shares per one MIS
share.) MIS is a total IT system and infrastructure service
provider specializing in enterprise management and enterprise
resource planning (ERP) software and solutions, as well as
authorized dealer of a wide rage of computers and peripheral

products, both software and hardware.
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Although there was an impact from staggering economy as a result of
high oil prices, higher interest rates, Tsunami disaster, draught, flood,
bird flue and the serious violence in the south, the information
technology industry still recorded high growth in 2005. The Bank of
Thailand projected Thai economic growth of 4.5% in the previous year
while the said industry grew 30% (excluding the communication
market) with the overall market value of 12,566.7 trillion baht or 30% of
the overall ICT market. The overall ICT market totaled 422,629 million
baht. These data were based on a survey conducted by the Software
Industry Promotion Agency (SIPA) and the Association of Thai
Computer Industry (ATCI) which were in line with a research conducted
by IDC (Thailand) Co., Ltd. The world-class IT research company
forecast Thailand to record 3.11 billion U.S. dollar (approximately 124,400
million baht) in expenditures and investment in the information
technology in 2005, up 22 percent from the previous year. The growth
was in line with the country's economic expansion and higher and faster
than the industry when it was in the normal state. Such high growth was
largely stimulated by the government's continuous supporting policies
especially investment in the government's projects according to the
E-Government policy coupled with investment projects from the private

sector that helped increase the industry's competitiveness.

The 2005 overall picture of the ICT development in Thailand showed
more enthusiasm from the public and the private sectors. As for the
public sector, almost all of ministries concentrated largely on the
Operation Center (OC) to integrate the state information and develop
e-Service. Single Window was stimulated by the E-Government policy
that directed all ministries to develop the Service Link which was
developed from One Stop Service. The public sectors initiated the ICT
strategies that supported and strengthened the economic growth. The
strategies including projects in Logistics upgraded the country's
international competitiveness. These projects included e-Port aiming
Laem Chabang to become an e-Port, Food Traceability applying the
RFID technology to trace back the production processes, Smart Card
for Identification Card, a plan to purchase computers for schools, Broad
Band, the development of the software industry that allows better
signal. These were partial results of the investment promotion policy of
the Board of Investment (BOI) in the previous year.

According to IDC (Thailand) Co., Ltd., the hardware market scored the
highest expenditures in 2005, accounting for 72 percent of total
market, followed by the information technology market with 18 percent
and the software market 10 percent. These were in line with a research
conducted by the Software Industry Promotion Agency (SIPA) and the
Association of Thai Computer Industry (ATCI) estimating that the
hardware market had the highest value of 63,381 million baht or 50.49
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percent of total market value, followed by the software market value
of 41,435 million baht or 33 percent and the computer services market
value of 6,729 million baht or 5.36 percent respectively. Taking the IT
expenditures (excluding the communications market) in all economic
regions, the private sector spent most in IT with the expenditure value
of 54,317 million baht or 49 percent. While the household sector and
Small office/Home office (SOHO) spent 37,592 million baht in IT or 34

percent. The public sector spent 19,654 million baht or 18 percent.

In 2006, Thailand's IT market is highly expected to grow continuously.
AR Research Co., Ltd., a research firm, predicted the IT expenditures
to increase 10-11 percent in 2006. IDC (Thailand) Co., Ltd. estimated
the investment and expenditures in IT to grow 8 percent with total value
of 3.37 hillion U.S. dollar (approximately 134,800 million). This is a part
of the government supports. The government's support projects include
a support of 250,000 computers by the Ministry of Education, cheap
notebook project, Microsoft's financial support of 140 million baht through
three projects - cheap software, e-Government and web service, the
tax exemption on IT products, an emergence of new technology - 3G,
and improvement of the country's basic infrastructure - Mega Projects
which are expected to account for 70% of total expenditures. The
software market is expected to grow by 10.5 percent from 290 million
U.S. dollar in 2005 to 320 million U.S. dollar in 2006. According to the
Association of Thai Software (ATSI), the software and services market
in 2006 is expected to grow at least 10% from the previous year with
total value of 40,000 million baht. Besides, Thai software market is
expected to record an average growth of 12.4 percent to 466 million
U.S. dollar by 2009. The expected growth is forecast to come from
several parts especially purchasing power from medium - and
large-sized businesses that tend to have more investment in IT to be
able to compete with rivals. The communications market and the public
sector still remain the main drivers of the growth. Small - and
medium - sized businesses will likely invest more in IT. Thailand is also

a major target market of the world software traders.

Marketing

The company has a business policy to focus more on 'IT Professional
Services' which grow rapidly and generate high profit margins,
and 'System Integration’ to differentiate itself from rivals and avoid price
wars. This business tends to have higher competition from both
domestic and foreign competitors. To maintain its profit margins and
returns on equity at the appropriate levels in the software development,
information technology and intellectual properties, the company
continues to expand business through joint investment with the
software companies in order to strengthen its business position and
earn high profit margins. Joint investment with alliances and business
leaders is considered as the company's main strategy for joint research
and development of products and services. This is to generate more
revenue and high rates of return in the longer term, and increase

bargaining power and competitiveness in the future.
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The company also set a policy to expand its customer base to those
with rising demand in the information technology. Aside from the main
customer, the telecommunication group, large-sized enterprises are in
this focus. They included financial institutions, manufacturers, state
agencies, state enterprises and educational sector which had a large
amount of financial investment for long-term IT plan according to the
government policy. Small- and medium-sized enterprises are also the
targets to allow more market distribution channels. The company is
positioned as the leading high-quality service provider and the leader in
the integrated information technology in the future with a focus on
direct marketing as the main marketing promotion strategy. Mostly, the
company established direct contacts and negotiation with customers.
In 2005, the company had 80 percent in the direct marketing of total
services and sales revenue. Most of them were the customers in the
private sector. The remaining 20 percent were from the government

auction.

Besides, the company established good relationship with customers in
the form of "Customers are our partners". In 2005, the company
recorded 90 percent of total revenue in the services and sales revenue
from the existing customer base, reflecting success of its services and
awareness of service quality. The company set up the quality
assurance team comprising experienced people in all work fields. The
team establishes the work processes and procedures after receiving
jobs and inspects the developed projects prior to delivering to
customers to assure the work quality and satisfy customers' demand.
The after sales services by experts are also provided to the customers
in both hardware and software. The after sales services include
answering questions and solving problems arising from
implementation in a predetermined period. After that period, customers
may hire the company to continue its administration and supervision
through purchases of any forms of maintenance. Based on
characteristics of its targeted customers, the company set up six sales
teams. They are the telecommunications group, the public sector, the
education group, the state enterprise group, the financial institution
group, the manufacturing group, the foreign customers group to present

its services to customers.

Product and Service Development

In 2005, the company concentrated on new product development by
joint investment with an alliance. The alliance excels in the business,
and software research and development. The joint investment allowed
their collaboration in new product development, information exchange,
establishment of intellectual property that added values in the
business, applied program development for solution design, and
increase the company's competitiveness. The special technical teams
were also established. They were Data Warehouse and Business

Intelligence for Niche Market, PMO (the project management system
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according to requirements of PMMI, Web Portal for improvement of
knowledge and internal communication. These allowed the company
to formulate more accurate plan and prediction in several aspects
including sales, set resources and human resources development plans

for more efficient work development and sustainable growth.

To increase service efficiency to the customers, the company will
develop Enterprise Application Integration to reduce costs, increase
interactive communications and provide management services in 2006.
The company has a policy to focus more on specialized projects with
clear scope of work and project period of no more than 8 months in IT
Services. The company will also study new technology to suit each
organizational culture and customize it as the solution, and develop
MFEC Methodology for quality improvement to satisfy the customers.
The company's mobile games for mobile phones have been popular
among customers in Thai games market with an expansion into
foreign markets. The company joined hand with S-Concept Wireless of
Singapore and Unicom BREW - a mobile phone network company in

China for market expansion in China.

Besides, Fingerprint Verification & ldentification System and the
administration software have been developed for a customer. They were
Time Attendant System and Accommodation Passing Control System,
the company's early projects in commercial research and development.
The company was a part of the pilot project to upgrade Lam Chabang
Port to be e-Port. It teamed up with the state agencies and other
companies to apply radio frequency identification (RFID) technology to
increase efficiency and speed in product and service delivery. It also
developed Open Source Software to meet customers' requirements in
operating cost reduction. The interesting development projects included
Mail and Web Mail for Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment,
Qmail for Office of Narcotics Control Board, Application Server for the
Stock Exchange of Thailand, and software or programs connecting to
hardware. These were additional services that encouraged the

customers to purchase the company's products.
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Industry Overview and Competition Situation

With high and continuous growth as a result of the government's
supporting industries, the IT business gains higher competition from
new domestic and foreign operators. These new operators compete for
shares in the market especially in the system integration and trading
whose competition in prices and quality of services was high. The
foreign hardware and software manufacturers entered into the market
with more integrated business and their products. These foreign
manufacturers including those from India were interested in setting up
the manufacturing bases in Thailand as a means to penetrate into other
countries especially China. These resulted in downward trend of prices

of hardware and software products with lowering profit margins.

With the above-mentioned reasons, the manufacturers were required
to adjust themselves through increase of the information technology
services, aside from trading, to increase their profitability. Expanding
into new businesses were made through acquisition of software
developers as a means to develop new products and earn higher profit
margins than foreign hardware purchase. There were an increasing
trend of mergers and acquisitions, joint investment with new alliances
as cross function for survival in the hardware and software industries.
The marketing strategies included joint marketing, joint presentation of
products and solutions, aggregation of software developers to strengthen
themselves and develop work standards and quality. Thai software
companies needed to make improvement in several aspects including
product standards and customer services in order to be able to

compete with rivals especially foreign ones.

In 2005, the software and related services market still registered growth.
According to the Software Industry Promotion Agency (SIPA) and the
Association of Thai Computer Industry (ATCI), total value of the
software and related services market amounted to 41,435 million baht
with a growth of 27 percent. Of total, the package software accounted
for 21,401 million baht or 52 percent and the outsourced software
amounted to 20,034 million baht or 48 percent. While IDC (Thailand)
Co., Ltd. found that in the previous year the software application shared
37.8 percent of total software market in Thailand, software system
infrastructure 41.6 percent, and software application development and
deployment 20.6 percent. The average annual growth is expected at
12.4 percent from 2004 to 2009 with total expected value of 466 million
U.S. dollar in 2009. Such expected high growth will likely be attributable
to increasing application use. ATCI expected the 2006 software
market (including only normal use, excluding software and services for
the government's Mega Projects) in Thailand to reach more than 20,000
million baht with growth of 20-30 percent. Total IT market is expected at
140,000 million baht. The software traders and developers tend to
adjust themselves to suit the SMEs with attractive prices and solutions

and expand their customer bases into the provincial markets.
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International Business

In 2005, the company paid more attention on expanding its foreign
customer base especially those in the game software development for
mobile phones which had high growth potential. To expand its
distribution channel, joining PromptNow Co., Ltd. and Advance
Intelligence Modernity Co., Ltd. in 2004 gave the company
considerable progress in the part of the game software development
for mobile phones. Aside from Thai games market, the company has a
plan to expand this product to other countries including China, India,
Taiwan, Singapore, and other countries in Asia Pacific and Europe where
growth rates are high. The games distributors are appointed in
countries where mobile phones are popular. These countries include
China, Singapore and Taiwan. With this condition, the company's
products receive better response from foreign customers. At present,
both companies are ready to penetrate markets in these countries.
In the earlier year, PromptNow Co., Ltd. and Advance Intelligence
Modernity Co., Ltd., the company's subsidiaries joined hands with
S-Concept Wireless of Singpore and Unicom BREW - the big mobile
phone network company in China to penetrate the Chinese market.
This will enable the company to increase its competitiveness in the
future. As for other products, the company is on the process of studying
the business to introduce the products and services it specializes in

and is locally successful to foreign markets.

Human Resources Development

The company has plotted out a clear policy in developing its valuable
human resources with a focus on capability development and
responsibility. It sets aside a part of its budget for regular training, clearly
defined career paths, employee relationship initiatives, scholarship
offers to competent and long-time employees, competitive
remuneration with appropriate performance based incentive, and ESOP
for employees in 2006. These are to encourage, attract and retain
employees. The company develops other employees to be able to
replace others that might be lost and recruits others for replacement.
The company established Human Resources Department as the main
unit to develop employees and work processes in a more systematic
approach. Aiming at the long-term sustainable growth, CAPABILITY
MATURITY MODEL INTEGRATION ("CMMI") is applied to improve the
corporate standardization and work procedures. The internal
infrastructure is concentrated to allow systematic and efficient
operations. The company's on-campus recruitment program has added
freshly graduates and experienced staff with strong and relevant IT
background to our workforce, who we prepare with orientation and
training for their understanding of our standard operating system and

organization culture.
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Internal Operation Enhancement

In the previous year, the company improved its internal operation
infrastructure in hardware and software to support its operations and
increase services capability and speed to customers and employees.
The improvement was also made for future business expansion in
communications, internal coordination, information exchange, data
warehouse system, and internal knowledge base, online internal
approval system, online helpdesk for after sales services, project
management office for systematic operations, web portal for
knowledge improvement, and internal communication procedures. Such
improvement allowed the company to have more accurate plans and
forecasts in several aspects including sales, human resources
development, resources development, etc, earn more efficiency in
operation development, record stronger and more sustainable
business growth, maintain the leading position in the consultancy
service and Thailand's integrated commercial electronics and computer
network development. Eventually, all improved the company's

performance.

Social activities

In the previous year, the company continuously participated in social
activities including donations of things to poor children, financial
supports for "Nam Jai Hai Nong" project which was the
general-purpose building's repair and donation of computers for
knowledge search to students of Kok Sawang School in Sa Kaew
province, and a host of "Thod Pa Pa" at Meditation Practice Center of
Nun Amaree, Panas Nikom district, Chonburi province to construct a
general-purpose hall for meditation practices and promotion of
employees in such practices. The company also encouraged
employees to gather to do social activities. Besides, the company
provided the financial support in join hand with Chulalongkorn
University to organize "30 years Computer Engineering Chula Mini
Marathon" to mobilize funds for the academic research for the society
project. It also organized 7th Intania Forum, 2nd Executive Engineer
Talk to raise fund for the study in the Faculty of Engineering,
Chulalongkorn University and for the "Visava Chula Song Krao Fund"”,
the alumni welfare fund. These are the corporate policy in supporting

activities that benefit the society every year.
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The IT service industry is considered a highly competitive
business and still has to depend on knowledge and specific
skills of personnel who can provide consultation and develop
the work until it's done. Therefore, losing personnel staff in
this area would definitely affect the operations and competitive
advantages of the company in the future. Nonetheless, during
the past year, the company was affected from such the factor
which is considered normal in such a highly-competitive
industry. In addition, the shortage of skilled people in the field
has caused the problem of personnel poaching from
competitor firms, but it's only small percentage comparing to
turnover ratio of the entire industry. Last year, the turnover
ratio of the company was around 17 percent, while the

average industry ratio was more than 20 percent.

To minimize the risk of personnel attrition, the company has
adopted the practice of from relying on personnel, the
company Capability Maturity Model Integration (CMMI), an
international standard aimed at managing people, enhancing
working proficiency of staff, establishing clearly defined career
path for staff in every level, setting up employee relationship
enhancement programs , offering scholarship for capable staff
who have been serving the company for a long time, offering
privileges for staff to buy the company's common stock (ESOP)
which will commence in 2006 as well as offering remuneration
packages that's appropriate for each level of staff. These are to
keep personnel to stay with the company in the long-term.
The company also gives emphasis on human resources
development so that they can replace the work of the staff that
the company may lose and find new capable persons to

replace them.

Aside from that, the company also put emphasis on internal
basic infrastructure development as the increase efficiency
of the system. This includes preparing software for Project
Management Office, web portal system, as well as the
development of knowledge and internal communications. There
was also the setup of Human Resources Department as a major
unit to be in charge of human resources training and
developed them with systematic approach, in order to be an
organization that can stay in the business in the long term.

In the year 2006, the company has a plan to set up a
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sub-committee for risk management by inviting outside
experts to join in the independent committee as to help plan
and set directions for risk management, especially in terms of
personnel. The issue will be proposed for the shareholder's

approval with April.

1.2 Risk from Major Customer Dependency

Over the past 2-3 years, the company has been primarily
engaged with existing customer base, mostly consisting of large
enterprises, which accounted for approximately 80 percent of
our total sales. The percentage is considered quite high and
may possibly affect the company's performance in case these
major enterprises restructure the management, appoint new
service providers, or reduce the investment budget in computer
and IT technology. Nevertheless, the company's policies to
expand customer base to other industries which have tendency
to require IT technologies such as government agencies,
educational institutes, financial houses and manufacturing
industries as to diminish dependency on particular customer
or industry, has helped lessen risks from such factors. This is
because it helped reduce the percentage of dependency on
large enterprises to be only 40%. In addition, the company's
policy on keeping long-term relationship with clients especially
in IT industry, finance and banking, has helped the company to
earn trust to provide them consultation and help them develop
more costly projects. Providing services to these clients has
become a good source of knowledge that helped the company
to further progress in the use of high technology, which make a
good portfolio and use them to expand to consultation service
and expand to a wider range of customers particularly to
government and education sectors, as well as state enterprises

which are potential market and have high investment cost.

1.3 Risk from Technology Manufacturer Dependency

Last year, MFEC acquired most of its merchandise from two
technology manufacturers: Sun Microsystems and Cisco
Systems which accounted for 186.44 million baht, and 227.31
million baht, or representing 23.77% and 28.99% of the total
value consecutively. The company is their dealer and business
partner. However, when comparing to the total procurement
value, they didn't account much percentage as the total value
of purchasing order from these two companies account for
only 55. Therefore, if in the future, they change business

operation, or change the policies on appointing dealers or
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policies on offering privileges to dealers, they won't have much
effect on the company's operating costs. This is because our
portfolio of products from over 10 manufacturers has brought
a large product selection and flexibility, as well as minimizing
the risk of technology obsolescence and change in

manufacturer's core business.

In addition, as our business focus is providing total services
and solutions rather than selling boxes of products and because
our policy to keep the inventory cost at the minimum or zero,
this allows us to be more independent to select the most
suitable products for customers and thus, more bargaining
power with the manufacturers than others of their partners.
The company has had good business relationship with both
manufacturers since the establishment of the company; and
the business contracted has been continuously extending.
In the future, the company has the policy to establish business
relationships with more vendors that have good growing
business potential as to minimize risk from dependence on
major manufacturers. This policy follows the changing

marketing situation.

1.4 Risk from products and services

A.Risk from project delay

Risk from the delay of projects mostly come from providing
professional services such as giving consultation and IT
development because last year the company had much higher
work from clients, so it was necessary to outsource the jobs to
subcontractors. This work accounted for 20-30 % of cost of
operation and services which was quite normal rate for IT
business providers. It also affects the Gross Profit Margin of
the company as a result of higher operating cost as well as
making the company unable to control the quality and timeframe
of operating a project which normally takes about 3-6 months
to do a project. There are two major factors for such the risk.
First is from customers such as inquiries to change the models
and quality of system being installed. This slightly impact the
company's operating cost as we have 2 ways of collecting
service fees on the milestone basis and time and material
basis which enable us to collect more fees from customers.
Second is the delays caused by the company's own working

procedure which is the risk as customer may charge for loss.

To minimize the risk, the company has adopted CMMI,
(a collaborating working system) and PMO (a project
management system according to the PMMI standard) to
enhance efficiency or working process. The systems are
applied to help set the working procedures and process in

providing services to customers. The working schedule and the
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improvement of work is set to make it meet the deadline, this
enables the company to solve the problems quickly and timely
without affecting the project as a whole. This is a strong point
of the company has never been filed from customers for the
delay of the project since operating the business. We also
depend less on outsource by encouraging our own staff to

develop the projects as to reduce the operating costs.

B.Risk from Technological Change

As the computer and information technology business has
encountered constant rapid change, the company may be
affected from the obsolescence of technology, the depreciation
of product value as well as the reduction of value-added
services such as consultation service, so the company is risk
to lose the competitive advantages in the long term. However,
such the risk doesn't much affect the company's business
operation as we have the policy to focus on keeping the right
balance of using technology and to minimize dependency on
one particular manufacturer. It could be obviously seen that the
company kept the dependency on technology from each
manufacturer at less than 20%, so this risk has the tendency to
decline. Aside from this, the technology committee which
comprises of executives and experienced specialists in
different fields of technology which have the roles to consider
and set the directions for selecting products, technology and
innovations to offer to customers is another major factor that
help minimize such possible risk. Also, the company has policy
to keep inventory cost at the zero level. The purchasing order
to manufacturer or dealers can be made only in case of
Built-to-Order. In 2005, inventory of products as of 31
December 2005 had increased from 2004 by 51.3 million baht
as in the second quarter, all inventory products were
products waiting to be delivered to customers for 80 projects,
out of 230 projects. It was up from the year before due to the
company's expansion policy. In addition, the company has
establish corporate culture by emphasizing on adjusting and
opening to new technologies and innovations. The average
age of employees is between 25-26 years, who are willing to
learn of new technologies and can rapidly adjust to any

changes.

1.5 Risk from Globalization

In the era of borderless global economy, each organization
is forced to adjust itself as to survive in the competitive

environment. The IT and information businesses have also
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become more competitive as there are now new players from
local and overseas which are trying to get more share in the
market, especially in system integration and trading services
which have the tendency for tougher competition both in terms
of prices and service quality. The entry of foreign operators
which are hardware and software manufacturers are
competing more in the market by providing fully-integrated
services along with distribution their own products. It could be
seen that last year more foreign manufacturers and software
developers invested were interested in setting up production
base in Thailand such as from India, Singapore and Malaysia,
most of which had experience in selling projects to government
agencies or want to find local business partners as to use
Thailand as a base to expand to other markets. They viewed
that Thailand constitutes a large labor market and at the same
time required IT technology to increase competitiveness in the
globalization era. Such the factor may have an impact on the
company in terms of market share and declining gross profit
margin. Therefore, the company has to speed up improving
itself in various aspects to cope with the situation. We have set
the plan to implementation of cost, core competency, product
development and customer service as to increase

competitiveness.

1.6 Financial Risks

A.Risk from Currency Exchange

The company has foreign exchange risk as most the company's
products have to be ordered from manufacturers in US dollar
while the revenue from selling products and services obtained
in baht currency. So the company is obliged to pay in foreign
currency. To cope with this problem, the company has reduced
the foreign exchange risk by making forward contracts
covering the full payment of foreign currency. As of
December,31,2005, the company had zero trade debts in form
of foreign currency, so the company didn't prevent risk from
currency exchange. This is because the company has sold the
products to some clients in foreign currency which covers the
payment in foreign currency, so the company didn't have to do
forward contracts for these clients. However, the company still
has to some foreign exchange risk as a result of different

schedule for bill payment from customers.

B.Risk from Variable Interest Rates

The tendency for rising interest rate since last year caused slight
impact on the company's performance and cash flow because
the company has minimal ratio of debts, so there was no
impact from the bank's overdraft and loans from financial

institutes. Also, the company has less percentage of debts.
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As of December,31, 2005 ,the company had financial debts in
form of overdraft and short-term loans from financial houses
worth a total of 38.02 million baht, down from 2004 by 113.47
million baht, or 74.90 However, clients in some business
sectors which have high debt ratio might be a bit affected as
they had to burden the rising interest rates, as well as the
decline in investment in IT and information technology due to
economic slowdown. However, the company's policy to expand
customer base to other industries have become a good factor
that prevents such the impact on the company's business
performance as we have clients from various business

sectors.
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List of top 10 major shareholders and shareholding structure as at the year ending
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Name of shareholders No. of shares % of total shares

—_

U5 Tamasuadu nfd in (wvnaw) 58,066,940 26.76%
Modernform Group Public Company Limited

2. wigedan  Ufvieu 24,037,728 11.08%
Mr.Adirake Patitus
- weadian  Uviad 23,476,816
- wigening Uit 560,912

3. WeENWIE  TaAfTIne 16,433,600 7.57%

Mr.Somphong Chonkadeedamrongkul

4. Wit wdngns 13,292,000 6.13%
Mr.Siriwat Vongjarukorn

5. Wity dnIcased 7,118,000 3.28%
Mr. Pornchai  Jukthumrong

6. WIBWIANT  cneLRes 6,895,950 3.18%
Mr.Pongskorn Saipetch,PH.D

7. WEOUNT TR 4,000,000 1.84%
Mr.Thanakorn Charlee

8. Wil  guaningd 3,941,005 1.82%
Mr.Chareon Usanachitt

9. WEIENANA  113N1T 3,106,310 1.43%
Mr.Somsak Varikarn

10. Walndwa  eENnuwT 3,000,000 1.38%
Mr.Lt.Gen Umnart Chayasamanon

* v - Swwiu dugfiouninedesiumamng 258 de

* Note : Number of shares includes shareholders in accordance with Section 258 as well
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Vice President- Sales
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wielning  qaelaniwao

Henwens
NRNGINFLIZINA
Vice President -
International Business
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NIIFAAA

Vice President-Corporate

Strategy and Market
Enabling
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NQHT
Assistant Vice
President -Sales
Government &
Education#1

WEAIDT  TUTH

§i38§51u38ﬂ13
Weene
ﬂﬁjmm@%’gm:mﬁﬂm
ngn2
Assistant Vice
President -Sales
Government &
Education#2

WIHATIA  JaaNwd

Wee
ﬂﬁiﬂ#ﬂﬁ@‘l&u@zmiﬁ%’]ﬂ’ﬁ
Assistant Vice
President -Sales
Banking & Finance
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HergneanInedaya
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Assistant Vice President-

Data Warehouse
Technology
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Hegemens
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Assistant Vice President
- Client Services &
Support
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* Note

Financial officer
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: On 31 December 2005 Miss Waewta Suksaneh, has been taken the positian of Executive Committee Member and Chief
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Board of Directors, Executive Committee and Audit Committee

AWENITNNITUTEN
Board of Directors

. WELAIY
Mr.Chareon

. WEYVINGE
Mr.Thaksa

- welesu
Mr.Yothin

. WEeALIN
Mr.Adirake

. WAL

Mr.Siriwat

. WeTYe
Mr.Jajjai

. W 1
Mr.Vitaya

. g
Mr.Suchart

. naNTTFNIHE TR
M.R.Pongsvas

* ANNGLAG) - NIINNIDFTZURLNTINNNIATIANOY

* Remark : Independent Director and Audit Committee
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DONLFEIRIAZ LU WSO

auonNing
Usanachitt

yuelnpz
Busayapoka

109 TheA
Nerngchamnong
Ufviant

Patitus

ELGRRPIE!
Vongjarukorn

LERIRPRICON
Dhammarungruang

LATUAIILATE
Vanduangden

5yIMWTINES *
Thammapitagkul
o aaas s
NINAIFU*
Svastiwattana

1925 UNTINNNT
Chairman

99U35UNTINNT
Vice Chairman

N3IINNIT
Director

N3IINNIT
Director

N3IINNIT
Director

N3NNI
Director

N3NNI
Director

N3NNI
Director

N3IINNTT
Director

Scope of Authority and Duties of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall perform its duties in compliance with the
law, the Company's objectives, the articles of association, as well as
the recommendations of the shareholders' meetings. The Board of
Directors is authorized to appoint and grant a number of directors
and/or executives the authority and responsibility to carry out the
Company's business, provided that such decision has attained an
approval from the shareholders' meeting. The board members shall
not be entitled to vote for the decision of those issues related to their
own interests or conflict of interest with the Company or subsidiary

companies.
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The Executive Committee consists of 4 members, as follows :

Uviend
Patitus

1. WIBBALIN
Mr.Adirake
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Mr.Siriwa

eNGRRPIE
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Charlee
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Mr.Thanakorn
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Suksanae
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. UseBIUNIINNNTUINT
Chief Executive Officer

X ﬂﬁNﬂ’]i’iﬁ‘ﬁ’]iLLﬁtﬂﬁNﬂ’]i@%’ﬂﬂ’lﬂﬂfy
Executive Director

. NITNNTLINT
Executive Director

. NITNMTLIANT
Executive Director

Scope of Authority and Duties of the Executive Committee

1.

Plan and set the policies, direction, strategies, as well as the
organizational structure and the structure of administration for
the Company's business operations.

. Map out the business plans, the budget and other administrative

functions of the company.

. Examine and monitor that those company's policies and various

administrative functions are implemented effectively and

support the business operations.

.Examine and monitor that the results of the company's

operations are in accordance with the prior approved business

plans.

. Assess large-scale investment projects of the company and

propose to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval.

. Have the authority to delegate and withdraw the company's

personnel of any position lower than the Chief Executive
Officer.

. Assess and approve the decision to enter a bid or accept the

hiring from any organizations or individuals.

. Occasionally conduct other activities, as requested by the

Board of Directors, and have the authority to approve financial

operations, with following conditions :

8.1) Approve with unlimited credit line, in case of operations
defined in the business plan or annual budgetary plan
already approved by the Board of Directors.

8.2) Approve with a credit line not exceeding Baht 20 million,

in case of operations other than defined in 8.1.
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The Audit Committee consists of 3 members, as follows :

U2 5IUNITNNIAIIRANOL
Chairman

LAIUAILA
Vanduangden

1. WgAnen
Mr.Vitaya

NITNNIIATIVNDL
Director

2. WIe§IA

SYIRTINEND

Mr.Suchart Thammapitagkul

SRR
Svasti

3. ilaNTTHANIEN TR
M.R.Pongsvas

v v
O A 3

NITNNIIATIVNDL
Director
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Ms.Varaporn Suthummaporn as a Secretary
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Scope of Authority and Duties of the Audit Committee

1. Review that company financial statements are represented
accurately and adequately disclosed.

2. Set out guidance and review that the Company has appropriate
and effective internal control and internal audit, and coordinate
with external and internal auditor (if any).

3.Review that the Company complies with the rules and
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other

applicable laws.

4.Consider and propose an appointment of the auditor and

determine the annual audit fee, by considering reliability,
sufficiency of resources, and quantity of audit tasks.

5. Consider the accuracy and completeness of the disclosure of
related transactions or transactions with potential conflict of
interest.

6. Undertake other matters as assigned by the Board of Directors
and/or the Audit Committee.

7. Prepare report of activities carried out by the Audit Committee
to be incorporated into the Company's annual report.

8. Assess the performance of the Audit Committee.
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Board of Director
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Director

PV 3
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Mr.Suchart
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Audit Committee Member
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wislaTy  guaniaed
Mr.Chareon Usanachitt

UIemunIIimT

wielodu  ieesued
Mr.Yothin  Nerngchamnong

N3NNI
Director

wigeAlIn  Ufvied
Mr.Adirake Patitus
U3esunIINNILInIg
WAZNTINMIT

Chief Executive Officer &
Director

WILINGT  UNIUALAW
Mr.Vitaya Vanduangden
U185 UNIINNNIATINGDY

Chairman of the Audit
Committee

nlanT AN TR
aTaA T
M.R.Pongsvas
Svastiwattana

N3ITNNITIATINEOY
Audit Committee Member

wievinez  ywvelnaz
Mr.Thaksa Busayapoka

0385 MUNTTHNT
Vice Chairman

wisditad  wdagns
Mr.Siriwat Vongjarukorn
NITHN1IHIANT,
NIINANT  UAZNITHNIILINI
President, Director &
Executive Director




AENTTHUASH VINT
Board of Directors and Executives

AL
Position

AN
NS
Relations

FAEIUNT
fiavin
Twusem (z)
Shareholding
(%)

ADLANINIANEN
Education

Uszaunisalrinenln
793 5 Ik U
Working Experience in Past 5

MFEC ANNUAL REPORT 2005




ALY
Position

AN
FHAUS
Relations

dasaun1g
fiavin
Twusdn (%)

Shareholding
(%)

AN NNTIANE
Education

Uszaumsalrinemln
T3 5 DN
Working Experience in Past 5

MFEC ANNUAL REPORT 2005




FAUALY
Position

AN
FHUD
Relations

fdasaun1y
favi
Twsom ()

Shareholding
(%)

AOKIANNINIANEA
Education

Useaumsalrinemln
93 5 AN
Working Experience in Past 5

MFEC ANNUAL REPORT 2005




ALY
Position

AN
FHNUD
Relations

gnaIunng
fiavin
Twisem ()

Shareholding
(%)

ADKANINTIANIN
Education

Uszaunolrienwln
93 5 DN
Working Experience in Past 5

MFEC ANNUAL REPORT 2005




ﬂ'ﬁﬂii?ﬂﬂiﬂm'ﬁLLﬂtFI‘lﬁﬂﬂ?
Selection of Directors and Executives

NMINITNINTIHNTUAEH VTNIT

V3l l@fnnsusedonniznIsun13§3am1 (Nominating Committee)
Foifu ﬂmmiumiu?ﬁwLﬂmj%’uﬁmiau“lumiaiimnﬁumiﬁﬂqmauﬁ'c?w
wazdszaunIniaaivisndoonns LLaxﬁaqﬁnmaa’mﬂmwaﬁ%qﬁﬂ
AN auE Il ianih Al uruiEn LLﬁuﬁﬂLﬁuamaawﬂ’ﬁLWiﬂﬁg@
sefiUszgnifiodn Tnededld3undifiuseumniilszuifieudronz umm
ReslateeninAmilesimawiuiinnuszgauasfingoanides Tnedfod
ﬂmﬁ:qﬁﬂzmeﬁﬂqLﬁﬂﬁ’mfidﬁm’awﬁué‘aq Afouusnzauazdedld
ﬂmmmﬁmﬁﬂaa“iﬁywmLﬁanﬁaqﬂﬂaﬂwﬁmw%awmaﬂmﬂumwmiﬁlﬁ
TrenmandsliunzumdosgograaiuasnidugléFudendodunssuns
WS InNTINNTAR LL@:‘[uﬂﬁﬂizﬂgumﬁfyﬂizﬁhﬂnnﬂ%u’ﬂﬁmmmﬁ
gonvnsumbaidusvon 1 T s Wudan Ml munssnsdildls
nywndszldimeswunsinalidulumadhsmnstioiluuisn
fe Lmﬁ]uuagjﬁ’umwmm:ﬁuLm:mmmmmsﬂm@ﬁiﬁ%’umiﬁmmw
AmdenTiidunssnng

Tunsdifshumbinsanisimannzingdunenanivninieenmuie
Tanznssmadenypeaviindidunssmaunilumsussguanensssns
pamiiall Menfinzuwwdeldtoendy 3 Tu 4 sesdwinnasunaiiviont

dn3uduims anenssnsvimasdudiuisreulunisssimguing
nfiaoanTFuszUzaunIiimazas

AMBUUNU UINT
Executive Remuneration

1 (Y

ANMBUUNUK UTNT
vSinAuleuelunsmmundineuunuAnIINNTIWIE LR8I UAY
u%ﬁ’w?ﬂﬂuqmmﬁmmﬁﬂﬁu Lﬂ'aj}\ﬂﬁ]Lm:mmmmﬁ’umwif ANMNEINITD
UAZAMNIUAATOUIDINTINANT SIUAIADUUNUALZNTINNITATIANDY
ﬂmzﬂﬁumiu'%gmxLﬂmﬁﬂﬁmmﬁmmmmmmu Fslgrinanesian
ﬂi:sgmjﬁmﬁaawﬁﬁ SUANABLUNUNITHMTUINIURELUTTIZRITON
Taedenlosiunanissivnuwsosuisnuasnatfiienusosduins
UARTAL

AKZNTTHNTUSINTINTIINNA 9 AW (FINNTIHNNTATIEDU 3 ¥YINW) A5
ﬁwmammuiugﬂmaqmmaumemnﬁﬂﬂi:sqmwﬂ Atk

Nomination of the Directors and Management Executives

The company has not appointed the Nominating Committee.
Therefore, the Board of Directors is responsible for selecting persons
with proper qualifications, experience, and sufficient time to contribute
their knowledge and abilities to the Company. Then, the list of the
nominated persons will be submitted to the shareholders' meeting
for approval, which shall be supported by no less than of total
shareholders present and eligible for voting. Each shareholder is
entitled to one vote per each share held. Each shareholder shall
exercise all of his/her votes to elect either one or several persons as a
director or directors. The persons who receive the highest number of
votes in their respective order of the votes in a number not exceeding
the number of directors to be elected at that meeting, shall be appointed
as directors. At each annual ordinary meeting, one-third of the
directors must retire from the office. As for the directors other
than independent directors, they shall be nominated considering the
proportion of shareholding, qualifications, and capability of each

candidate.

In the case of vacancy in the Board of Directors for reasons other than
the expiration of the director's term of office, the Board of Directors
shall elect a person at the next meeting of the Board of Directors. Such
resolution of the Board of Directors shall consist of the votes of not less

than three fourths of the remaining directors.

As for the management executives, the Management Committee is
responsible for nomination of management executives who possess

proper qualifications and experience.

Executive Remuneration

The company's executive remuneration policy is established
to be commensurate with the industry standard and reflect level
of knowledge, competency and responsibility of the directors.
The remuneration of an auditor is determined by the Board of Directors
and is proposed at the shareholders' meeting for approval.
The remuneration of the Management Committee and the
management executives is determined taking into account the

company performance and each executive's performance.

A total of nine members in the Board of Directors (including three
auditors) receive remuneration and annual meeting allowance as

the following.
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Compliance with good corporate governance
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Money Remuneration
Nine members in the Board of Directors, Consists of two auditors and
sixmanagement committees receive a total of 1.19 million baht as

incentive and meeting allowance.

The members of the Management Committee and management
executives receive remuneration in forms of salary and bonus as the

following.

Twelve management executives (from the position of Assistant
Department Director to Managing Director) receive a total of 20.19

million baht as salary, bonus and provident fund.

Other Remuneration

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) :

The Ordinary Meeting No. 1/2005 held on April 25th, 2005 approved
the Company to grant warrants to the directors and employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries. A total of 1,300,000 warrants are allotted
to nine directors. Each warrant gives the right to subscribe for one share

at 4 baht a share.

1. Principles related to the business supervision

The Board of Directors is aware of the importance of good
corporate governance. To increase transparency, the company's
competitiveness, confidence to shareholders, investors
and related parties, and benefits in business operations,
the company pays much attention on good governance in
the following practices.

- Ensure fair and equal treatment to all shareholders.

- Organize the Board of Directors' structure based on duties,
responsibilities. In the case of having committees other than
the Board of Directors, these committees' roles, duties and
responsibilities shall be clearly defined.

- Operate business with transparency and pay high attention on
disclosure of clear and sufficient information at an appropriate
time.

- Operate business with careful consideration especially in
risk-taking. Regularly assess the risk situations, find the
strategic solutions and follow up the risk management.

- Build up awareness of and encourage practices of ethical

behavior to the executives and employees.
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2.Rights and equality of shareholders

The Board of Directors establishes a policy to equally treat and
facilitate all shareholders. All shareholders will be treated equally
in attending the meeting and receive prompt, complete and
adequate information for their decision-making. They will be
encouraged to cast their votes or votes through proxy in the case
of their absence and express their opinions and pose any

inquiries.

The company has equal fiduciary duties toward all groups of

stakeholders as the following.

1. Employees The company treats all employees in equal and
fair manners, and provide them appropriate remuneration.

2. Trade partners and creditors The company fairly treats its
trade partnes and creditors based on trade conditions and/or
mutually agreed contracts.

3. Customers The company provides customers good quality
services and satisfies customers' demand with concerns
over safety issues.

4. Competitors The company complies with code of in
competition and avoids dishonest approaches in competing

with others.

.Leadership and Vision and Position Aggregation or

Segregation

There are three committees with clear duties and authorities in
the company : the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and
the Management Committee. The clearduty and authorities of
each committee allows the company to set its direction in
operating business more efficiently. The Board of Directors sets
the company's goal, and determines roles and responsibilities of
the Audit Committee, the Management Committee and Chief
Executive Officer (More details of the roles and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee, the Management Committee and Chief
Executive Officer in "Operation Structure"). The Management
Committee sets policies and directions, and formulates business
strategies to be in line with the goal set by the Board of Directors.
The Audit Committee reviews the company's operations to be in
compliance with related laws. Besides, the company establishes
efficient internal control system, the internal audit and risk
management which are regularly followed up in the Board of

Directors' meeting.

Currently, to be independent, Chairman of the Board of Directors
is not the same person as Chairman of the Management
Committee and managing Director and not the company's

employee.

MFEC ANNUAL REPORT 2005




a.anutandanonatszlend
WetbsiuaadnudmosatazTomd v3slErvmnldnnensamms
araseududoriAnenaszniiu usslfidameneaziBeateos
enTIENT i LﬁﬂﬁyﬂmumiLﬁumummﬁmmiﬁfy%ﬁ
Aun wenanituisniuloiedanlaldnssmnaagfuims
uh%yja°11a\m%ﬁwv[,ﬂ‘[%'l,ﬁaﬂﬁﬂwﬁﬁmmﬂu’dﬂmﬂwmmqw%a
medenuazliinzldTunanauununde ifians

5.97807IHN NG INY

T anag sl fifomn visnlddarheTseiusi
WarTuusnuazdaR el fiTAe Lﬁa‘[ﬁ'ﬂmznﬁmﬁ@u%mi
aranaunineutasL s ldUfiRuediaTenTmnnaz oI
Tnefamsenussniasaunguluidasmau e i seqnén sagén
AUt ﬁjﬂmﬂﬁ@ﬂé}u 9 LATADRIANEIUTIN TINTIRILESHN
Tl mU §iRmaasseussifiivun uaztssnodn
nwuuvagneiia

61130299 n389n 738N 77 W 1T uinasg
FotTadurasuSTnivue WA nITNNTU3 LIz neUfIenTINNT
adetion 5 au Tag oo Tuil 31 Sunan 2548 ADENTINNNT
goesTszneufenTINmM IS n o an Wunasanan 1@
nneTesIENI WL 7 Au nIedAadunin 3 T 4 2eesmm
NI aVNA ﬁgqfrnﬁum‘5v‘1"134‘vl¢’ﬂﬂuqﬂ%wmaw%ﬁ‘wﬁqna’n
3 an v[ﬁ%'llﬂ’]iLLﬁfﬂ@lgﬂﬂ’]ﬂ‘ﬁlﬂiz‘qﬂﬂmzﬂﬁﬂﬂ’ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁ 2/2546

'
-

Woduil 23 wownian 2546 unziUszguiadndioru

AT 3/2546 W0 TUA 25 Hpwien 2546 T TuamenIsnnsnasey

7.AIMOUUNUNTIHNNTT UasUTNIT

viEnfiuleunelunaimvuedseuunuuinssimslussdudesiy
Tugmsmnsssifentu egsleuszmnzaniumnaamsnin
wazANIUARTeUNTINNNT IneaniznTsunauTEnasdudianson
nuareLunwLEHeseT LTz o ewiTd mingdeuls
fsonudrifiesisnganlnedibifnszloniiaadiagl#5
IMNABENTTNANT mea;ﬁm:ﬁuﬁﬁauLﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ’waqqmmmﬁu
Lﬁmﬁm:awﬁﬁmuﬁﬂmxﬂiwmiﬁﬁwLama

MFEC ANNUAL REPORT 2005

4. Conflict of Interests
In order to prevent any conflict of interests, the Audit Committee
is authorized to approve interrelated transactions. Details of such
transactions shall be disclosed in the financial statements
according to the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
Besides, the company prohibits its directors and executives
fromusing the company's information for their own benefits

neither directly nor indirectly and with or without return.

5.Business Ethics
In maintaining the standards of operation, the company has
established the Code of Conduct as the principles and
guidelines for the Board of Directors, executives and employees
to reflect business ethics and virtues. The Code of Conduct
covers treatments to shareholders, customers, trade partners,
rivals, other stakeholders and the society at large, and
encourages subordinates to adhere to the ethical code of

conduct, and set good examples for them to follow.

6. Balance of Power for Non-Executive Directors

The company's regulations require the Board of Directors to
comprise of at least five directors. As of December 31st, 2005,
the Board of Directors consisted of nine directors. Of total
directors, seven were not the company's employees or more
than three fourths of total directors. Of seven directors who
were not the company's employees, three have been appointed
at the Board of Directors's meeting No. 2/2003 held on May 23rd,
2003 and the extraordinary shareholders' meeting No. 3/2003
held on June 25th, 2003 to act as the Audit Committee.

7.Remuneration to Directors and Executives
Level of remuneration shall be structured to the same industry
standard to attract the directors and reflect their knowledge,
abilities and responsibilities. The Board of Directors shall
determine and propose the amount of remuneration at the
shareholders' meeting for approval. The shareholders shall
give approval if they consider the proposed amount is worth
providing to directors and comparable to those in the same

industry.
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8. The Board of Directors' Meeting

The Board of Directors shall meet every quarter or a special
meeting may be called by the Chairman as necessary. Each
meeting shall comprise of more than 50% of total directors.
A Board of Directors member unable to attend a meeting shall
inform the company one to two (1-2) days prior to the meeting.
To facilitate all directors in the meeting, the company organizes
the meeting at the company's head office. The meeting invitation
letters coupled with clear meeting agenda and meeting
documents will be delivered to all directors at least seven (7)
prior to the meeting with exception of an urgent case. This is to
allow all directors to study the meeting documents before the
meeting. Each meeting will be recorded and the approved
documents will be gathered for reference and future
investigation.

The meeting time will be allocated sufficiently by the Chairman
for the directors' discussion and comments to the management.
All directors are independent in making any comments.

In 2005, the company's Board of Directors had five (5) general
and special meetings with the following attendance record of each
director.

AVRVCEETIT RERERIEE ¢ NHIBLING
Number of meeting attendance Remark:

alazgn 1 A%
Absence 1 time

alszgw 1 A%
Absence 1 time
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9.

10.

11.

Subcommittee

Aside from the Board of Directors, the company has the

following subcommittees.

1. Audit Committee comprises three independent directors as
detailed in the Audit Committee

2. Management Committee comprises four executive directors

as detailed in the Management Committee.

The duties and authorities of the above-mentioned committees
are clearly stated. Meanwhile, the company has not established
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee as

the corporate structure is not complex.

Control System and Internal Audit

The Board of Directors has delegated the Audit Committee to
supervise the management and ensure efficient internal control
system including financial control, operation performance,
legal issues, operations and risk management to protect
shareholders' investment and the company's assets. The
internal audit department is responsible for auditing, reviewing
and ensuring the efficient operation procedures. Five elements
of the internal control shall be assessed annually. It is concluded
that the company has the sufficient internal control system.

The details are disclosed under "Internal Control System".

The Board of Directors' Report

The Board of Directors of MFEC Plc. is responsible for its
financial statement and MFEC and its subsidiaries' consolidated
financial statements. The said financial statements have been
recorded in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
standard in Thailand by selecting the common and appropriate
accounting practices. The financial statements have been
completed with the most carefulness, the appropriate
forecasting methods and sufficient information disclosure in the
notes to the auditors.

The Board of Directors will be responsible for the information
stated in the annual report. The Audit Committee which
comprises of independent directors will take care of the quality
of financial statements and the internal control system.
The Audit Committee's comments will be recorded in the Audit

Committee's report in the annual report.

The Board of Directors commented that the 2005 financial
statements of the company and its subsidiaries which have
been reviewed by the Board of Directors together with the
management and the corporate auditors provide accurate,
reasonable and reliable performance and financial status.
The financial statements, which are in accordance with related
regulations and laws, are based on the generally accepted
accounting standard, common and appropriate accounting

practices with adequate information disclosure.
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12.Investors' Relations
The company concentrates on disclosure of correct,
transparent, complete and prompt information in finance,
performance and other issues for investors and other related
parties' decision-making on investment. The company reveals
financial and general information in an annual information
disclosure form (Form 56-1) and its Annual Report 2004
(Form 56-2) according to standards and principles set by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange
of Thailand. The company has established the investors'
relations unit to be in charge of communication tasks its
shareholders, investors and other interested parties. In 2005,
the investors' relations unit has taken part in activities with the
Stock Exchange of Thailand. The company has joined the
exhibitions to make presentation on the company's information
to its shareholders. This was the activities that made its
information reach investors directly. Besides, the company
disseminates its information through www.mfec.co.th as a means

to reach the investors.

Protection Against the Use of Inside Information
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The Company's policy to control and prevent management and
staff from using inside information for their own benefits is set forth in
a code of conduct. According to the code of conduct, the company
prohibits its management and employees from disclosing any inside
information, which they might have access to, to people outside the
organization, not to trade the company shares prior to the review and
approval of its financial statements by auditor. In addition, the guideline
states that an Audit Committee meeting is required to review and
certify the financial report to evaluate and make recommendations to
the Board of Directors by the day the Audit Committee completes the
audit tasks. The stated financial report shall also be submitted to the
Stock Exchange of Thailand on the same business day or no later than
the following business day. In case any employee is found using the
Company's inside information for personal benefits, such employee shall
be investigated and penalized if found guilty in accordance to the rules

defined in the company's Code of Conduct.

In addition, the management is required to submit a report detailing
any securities held or changes within a time frame specified to the
Stock and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand in accordance with Clause 59 of the Securities and Exchange
Act, B.E. 2535.
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The Board of Directors has constantly put emphasis on internal control
and consistently improved it to the level appropriate and sufficient for
business operations to prevent risks that might occur to business.
This includes the control and improvement on finance, investment,
and operation. The company also set the structure that allowed
management team to supervise the operations efficiently, in line with
the principles of good governance as to protect the assets and benefits

of the organization, shareholders and all involving parties.

In addition, the Board of Directors also appointed an Audit team from
independent committee which was responsible for monitoring the
management to lay out the internal control system that's efficient and
sufficient and can cover all aspects. It also appointed the Internal Audit
team to monitor and evaluate the operations of each unit, as to make

sure that their working procedures conform to the set guidelines.

The company has set the internal control system that is in line with the

international internal control standard as follows :

1. Organization and Business Environment
The Board of Directors has put emphasis on cultivating
conscience and creating internal control environment that
every employee can understand and follow. A code of conducts
was prepared, in written documents, so that employees can
understand clearly on the operations which are based on the
legal, moral and ethical standards. They are set as the practice
towards shareholders, employees, customers, business partners,
competitors and society as a whole. The Board has also set the
scope of operations and working procedures that cover all kinds
of transactions in written documents, along with making an
appropriate organizational structure that fit with business plans,
recruiting quality staff, and organizing staff training that are

suitable with the business changes.

2. Risk Management
At present, the business situation has changed rapidly, resulting
in both the good opportunities and high risks. Therefore, the
company has put emphasis on risk management by ordering the
Executive Committee to constantly report about the risks that
can affect the business operations to the Board of Directors and
Audit team for quarterly auditing, so that the Board can join to
consider the risk factors that directly affect the company.
The Board of Directors has appointed the Executive Committee
to set the policies and framework on risk management that
occur at organizational level as well as follow the evaluation and
report to the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee has

considered the strategies to use for risk management as follow :
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- Risk Acceptance : In case that the Executive Committee has
considered that the risks that occur do not exceed the
acceptable level.

- Risk Acceptance : In case that the Executive Committee has
considered that the risks that occur do not exceed the
acceptable level.

- Risk Avoidance : by avoiding or cease the operations,
or readjust the activities that can result in risky undertaking.

- Risk Reduction is an operational procedure that helps reduce
the risking undertaking and the effects that might happen from
taking such risks.

- Risk Sharing is by sharing risks to others.

. The Control of Management's Operations

The company has documented policy and regulations for the
operations of finance and accounting, procurement, sales of
goods and services departments as well as for the utilization
of the company's assets to the best value. The roles and
responsibilities of the operating, monitoring, assessing and
approving tasks have been separated from each other for
appropriate balance of authority and cross audit. Apart from that,
the company has also set the transaction process for major
shareholders, executive committee or involving parties by
setting up a taskforce to study about the advantages,
disadvantages, and impact to propose to the executive
committee, auditing team and the Board of Directors to consider
the qualifications. The approval of the transaction is done by those
who have not got any benefits from the transaction and monitor
to make sure than the operational procedure is abide by the

conditions agreed together.

. Information and Communication Systems

The company places great importance on the disclosure of
information in accurate, complete, transparent, reliable and timely
manners for financial reports, general information as well as other
sensitive information that might influence the decision making
process of directors, management, shareholders, investors and
stakeholders by indicating in meeting materials and minute of
meeting. This information have been published in the company's
Annual Report and the Annual Disclosure Statements (Form
56-1) as well as in other information distribution channels of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The company also utilized
information technology to enhance internal communication

efficiently.

Corporate information system for internal communication has
been developed and improved In the year 2005, the company
organized Project Management Office (PMO) by developing
Rational Portfolio Manager (RRM) software as to develop the
program that support the database system using tools and
utilities for more accuracy, completeness and timeliness of

information, as well as overall system efficiency.
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5.Monitoring and Measurement Systems

The Executive Committee shall regularly monitor the performance
management by setting up meeting once a month to follow-up
work progress and discuss problems in order to identify
solutions. The Internal Audit team is responsible for monitoring
and evaluating the issues raised in the meeting. Following-up of
projects previously reviewed has been indicated in the Internal
Audit team's annual audit plan so that the auditor can review if
corrective action for problem has been taken as mutually agreed
and that such problem or risk is diminished to an acceptable
extent for top management. In order that the Internal Audit team
can perform its duties with full independence and balance of
authority can be achieved, the Board of Directors determines
that the Internal Audit team directly reports to the Audit

Committee.

In 2005, the Board of Directors obtained the reports from
Auditing committee and regularly acknowledged the operational
performance from internal control and it has the opinion that the
company's internal control is sufficient and appropriate; and there
was no flaws of internal control that could have serious effect
on the expression of opinion of the Auditing Committee in the

financial statement.
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The company has a policy of paying a dividend of not less than 50% of
net profit after tax and legally retained earnings. The company's Board
of Directors is authorized to declare no dividend payment or alter the

policy occasionally to optimize the shareholders' benefits.

For example, the earnings is used for debt payment reserve,
investment for business expansion or the case of changes in market
conditions that may affect the company's future cash flow.
In 2005, the Board of Directors has a resolution to declare the dividend

payment of 0.33 baht per share.
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The company reveals the interrelated transactions in sufficient details
so that investors can make decision on their investment. The details

are stated in the notes to the auditors as the following.

The interrelated transactions for goods and services, office supplies,
office rent and services, borrowings to related businesses, account
receivables and account payables in the related businesses are stated

in the Note to the auditors, No. 6.

Aside from the above-mentioned transactions, the company had
liabilities that might occur on December 31st, 2005 as stated in the
Note to the Auditors, No. 23. The company fully complies with the
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission in

disclosure of interrelated transaction in the notes to the auditors.

6.1 Necessities and rationale of a transaction
The interrelated transactions are necessary and reasonable to
optimize the company's benefits. The Audit Committee
comments that the transactions occur in line with general
business practices so that the company receives and makes

payment at fair prices.

6.2 Approval measure or procedure for an interrelated

transaction

An interrelated transaction shall be submitted at the Board of
Directors' meeting for approval. The Audit Committee shall
attend the meeting to consider and approve such transaction.
Such transaction shall be complied with the Securities and
Exchange laws, regulations, announcement, notification or
requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Those who
might have conflict of interest or stakes in the interrelated
transactions have no voting rights in the interrelated

transactions.

6.3 Guidelines or trend in making an interrelated transaction with
a person who may have conflict of interests in the future
Guidelines on interrelated transaction
Interrelated transactions that will likely occur in the future
can be grouped into two categories.

1. Normal and continuous transactions The company will
determine the principles and guidelines for the normal and
continuous transactions with general trade conditions, fair,
reasonable and traceable prices. The principles and
guidelines will be proposed to the Audit Committee for

approval and comments on rational of each transaction.
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2. Special and occasional transactions The Audit Committee
will be assigned to comments on appropriateness of each
transaction. If the Audit Committee does not have expertise
in an interrelated transaction, the company will assign an
expert such as an auditor or an asset evaluator or a law
office, etc. who is independent from the company and a
person who may have conflict of interests to make comments
on such transaction. The comments will be used as
information for the committee or the shareholders as the case
may be.

Interrelated transactions/ future trend

1. As for an interrelated transaction on rental office and parking

space, the transactions will continue in the future. If the rental
fee, wages and/or conditions of rent or subcontract fee is
changed, the company would consider the appropriateness
and implement according to the rules and guidelines that the
Audit Committee has considered and approved.
Whether to do an interrelated transaction with a company
that may have conflicts with depends on appropriateness
and necessity of each transaction. If such interrelated
transaction occurs, the company will abide by the guideline
the Audit Committee has considered and approved.

2. As for an interrelated transaction on guarantee. If the
company puts up collaterals against credits requested by its
subsidiary, the company has a policy to put up the amount of
collateral in accordance with its stake in the subsidiary.
In the case that the company can not comply with such
guideline, the company will proceed in accordance with the
Securities and Exchange Commission in the information
disclosure and interrelated transactions of the listed

companies.

6.4 Reasons that a person who may have conflict of inter

ests holds a stake of more than 10% in a subsidiary or
joint venture.

None

MFEC ANNUAL REPORT 2005




A1085U18 LRZILATIZHNANIIAL AWK

LESFIUSNWNITW

Operating Results and Financial Status

nnuAS AUl eyaungugnénilimuenladunsliuinsiduas
ranraeluszuunudiuneniowes nanuIEnldiiauefuduaz
vinsimannraesionagnimaguagnéniisenndasiuniadesniszes
qnéusiazngy tieflaznngugndmnngugafiuazseneggndngs
whvsnedultiAndu Taedonutugueaesnistiuinmionsmneds
AN HuazANRINe lagugastagndn

MﬁuaﬂﬁlNmmu%ﬁwE’J’qmﬂﬂﬂlﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂmﬂﬂfﬂuqiﬁmﬁamiLLa:TmmmﬂN
Iuﬁ'ﬂﬁauﬁﬁauﬁwqqLﬂ'mﬁauﬁ'uqiﬁﬂﬁ'u Lﬁaammﬂmq'uﬁﬂa”mwmi
Wulnsesanudesnisduduaziuvinisdunaluladasawnagy
Tmaé’\mqLﬁfumwmmaumemwﬁLﬁuqiﬁﬂﬁ’mamqNﬁqqiﬁﬁ)u?mi
AU wazAmuw9w dunalulagdanssuwnd (IT Professional
Services) ﬂmﬁgqqiﬁ%%miﬁmmiﬂw;ﬁnm (Maintenance Service)
WANHAN T Lﬁaqmﬂﬁé’mwﬁﬂﬁuﬁuﬁ@qndwqﬁﬁamiﬁwmLm::mi:uu
(System Integration) usioenslafia Freuleureresssniidesniainuay
mmagmqnﬁ’wmnn@ué’mﬁwﬁqLﬂuqnﬁwwﬁ“ﬂiﬂé’ﬁﬂ@ﬂqmﬂﬁﬂniimé‘u
IANNINT W Fodonalivisnidadmneldlunguanisuniaduuasngs
masguaznaAns Wl 2548 Fongugnéndsnanaidunguiisl
iz lieduiensamuluszezendeudoge

uarmnfru%ﬁwé’qﬂu‘[amaiumwmamaumeiﬂixnauqiﬁmﬁmmﬂ%u
Tmaﬂﬁ'w'muﬂc—i’nﬁi’ammmﬁﬂw%ﬁw Tuinasunesn uiinadu
[INITE 1A mnﬁ\lﬁmnmﬁﬂuﬂ 2547 7 3 U3 eutu
m?umaﬂimmqmiﬂs:ﬂauqiﬁ’«nLmza%’wé’mwamauLmuﬁ'qﬂmzazma
Tneyaitunismefuduazlduinmamsiinmatawnsendurfdniy
pudnImanansuazidn Fefiunliindulaialuewen Fanadids
amu‘luu%ﬂ’mm 4 AL T A NE T AR NI TN T LT 9T
uazdnenwnsrnmlsEUSIRRan Tl iowan

WANIALHUY

nanseiwelud 2548 USEMuazUIENdeefiTeldTin 1,517.5 Auun
Tnguungldiangsfaimuwiuazinszouiay 1,019.7 duun Andu
fnsudneas 67.2 1098lATIN mﬂqiﬁw%miﬁmﬂﬁﬂwqﬁﬂmwhﬁ'u
220.9 §uum Anidudndudosss 145 vemaldan ngiiald
AU NEILAS W RIBUAUENTEWNAWINAD 268.0 81uumn Amdn
Sounz 17.7 9 T0ldTIN Wz nTeldBwrinty so dwum  Anudu
Soeaz 0.6 10938 lHT

dvsulusmvesussninelism 1,277.9 dmumn lnsunaselddmnan
HNgINIMAN 3 Uszinnde iﬂﬂiﬁﬂﬁnqiﬁmﬁ@uﬁLLamNizuuwhﬁ'u
847.9 L Anudndiudessy 66.4 v8958ldTm INQINIVINTT
funsdigeineyindy 2086 dwun Aadudadiuiesas 16.3
soenaldnin nngafaldrUTnsussimweuiusTswneavii

MFEC ANNUAL REPORT 2005

MFEC Group lays down a policy to focus on enterprise customers
with strong needs for quality and comprehensiveness of IT services.
In order to maintain existing customer base as well as broaden market
reach, the Group strives to offer diversified products and services to
suit different needs of each customer, with an emphasis on after-sales

service and customer maximum satisfaction.

The company's main customer base in 2005 was still the
telecommunications sector, which rendered higher growth rate for IT
product and service needs than all other industries. Our business fo-
cus has been steered to total IT solution with more emphasis on IT
professional services and maintenance service rather than systems
integration since the former returns more gross profit margin. In addi-
tion, to sustain its growth rate in long term, MFEC has continued to
expand its business focus to other industry sectors with long-term IT
investment. The company subsequently gained higher
percentages of income from the financial services and the

government and education sectors in 2005.

The company has also continued business expansion by investment
through subsidiaries, after acquiring 3 companies in 2004. MFEC ac-
quired Modernform Integration Services (MIS) Co., Ltd. in 2005 in or-
der to strengthen competitive edge, as well as to prosper long term
business and high return rates. With MIS as a subsidiary, the company
can reach more small and medium enterprise customers,

the market with high growing potentials.

Operating Results

At the end of 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries gained a total
revenue of Baht 1,517.5 million, which can be segregated into :
Baht 1,019.7 million or 67.2 percent for systems integration business,
Baht 220.9 million or 14.5 percent for maintenance service of,
Baht 268 million or 17.7 percent for IT professional services of and

Baht 8.9 million or 0.6 percent from other income.

The company itself gained a total revenue of Baht 1,277.9 million,
which can be segregated into: Baht 847.9 million or 66.4 percent for
systems integration business, Baht 208.6 million or 16.3 percent for
maintenance service of, Baht 214.8 million or 16.8 percent for IT
professional services of and Baht 6.6 million or 0.5 percent from other

income.




) a ) ) Py | o
214.8 §muwm AaTudoras 16.8 109889 wazanTeldBurinAL
6.6 amum Anudesaz 0.5 vasTeldTm

é”mmﬂumﬂwLLa:mﬂﬁU%mﬂmﬁﬁﬂuﬂ 2548 USENULAZUIENERE
9w 1,151.9 Fuum Y EESes M IsTusurinduIaeas 23.6 gy
Y me

TudiuresuSondd i 972.4 dmum i lAuSEndsnsdminlsdudu
wihiuSeeas 235

mnﬁmimé’m31muﬁﬂﬁguéfu‘lummaw%ﬁmaqLwiaznfojuqiﬁaﬁm%'u
i 2548 é’mi’lﬂ”mﬁﬂi‘ﬁjuﬁ%%ﬂﬁjﬁﬁ]ﬁ/wWlLL@z]WdizUULﬁWﬁU%@ﬂﬁx 19.0
é’m‘mdmﬁﬂi‘fmﬁmaqqiﬁw%miﬁmmiﬁw;ﬁnmMwﬁ'ﬁaﬂaz 45.0
meé’mﬁmuﬁwvb%ucé’fmmqiﬁﬂiﬁﬁnﬂ%nmLLaxﬁwuﬂqwuﬁwuLWﬂTuTaﬁ
sssmneriigesas 20.4 s lidnTmlstudurinesssnwindy
Younz 235 TﬂﬂﬁqLLﬁdfﬁé'mwdauﬁf[a%uﬁumaqqiﬁﬂﬁwmLLﬂmNi:UU
Tunmawmsssrmaduwi iz anassiudunannannisudsiuguani
ﬁq\asﬁyu mﬂmﬂﬁ’mmﬁﬂﬁumﬂEﬂa’fﬁnnqiﬁﬁ]é‘namﬂ@ju%ﬁﬁmnﬁmﬁﬂi
Fusnroutnaguinaerluisnassasnusandmilsdusulas s

13ls

Aldelunsmenazuinssmivd 2548 vesUSENLasUSENdoeAn
Wudndwdesaz 160 sSwsuludiusesuisndndudndiudosas 145
go9meldn Tneanld9alunsaneuszuinissesuisndulngfe
Swienuazarldieiertuntdnem dedndudesay 50 vavnldane
TunTmeuezusmITN. Homdusasnanusdnldindroimnsmsy
FunnauuteuelunisretenuuInTIEa U nB e s WA
G’w’mLﬂﬂTuTaﬁmiﬁumﬂimﬁv’omuu%miﬁmmiﬂﬁﬁ;ﬁnm

PINHANIANAWUANA TN 196 u’%ﬁwﬂﬁﬂiqw%ﬁw%’uﬂ 2548 Ty
FIwn 76.8 a L Andudadwrindudesas 6 vevsaldTin Fadn
HRINNIF T LA NE 398

USNMIIU
1. Runine
1.1 dwmtazneuresiuning
UsWnuasUSsndeefiaunindTin o il 31 SN 2548
TIUIN 957.6 KIWUIN LLU’@Lﬂuﬁuw%'wa‘muﬁamﬁmu
805.5 dmum nisAndudnduioeaz 84.1 uazfuniweg
Tamgwdeudnuan 152.1 dwuun vieAndudadiufesns 15.9
1.2 nesiuning
- fufesnte VISNFATAMANTIAY (3“5’;La§a) WioyaA
gw%ﬁ'aﬂﬁ%’uLL&’JLLG]‘@&‘N“[MW%WMW
- qnwﬁmiﬁw mwmamﬁ;ﬂizﬂamumiﬁuﬁ 5 TieunnTidu
YBILTEN V[ﬁu,smaamgnwﬁmwmanqwﬁﬁﬁwqﬁw5z qnwﬁﬁawum
AnanInedudnuasuinns fanmniase uazanansnEen
dr3znildauUng
ﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬂﬂ’ﬁ%\‘iﬁ’ﬁmﬁﬂLﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁdﬁﬂﬂz@@ Uitazstulaeianson
anUszaunmsaflunisfioniiuazansasnsolunisdrseni
maqqﬂwf‘: Usznaufiuinsonanuiitemesesdnidenitaod
Wy IﬂﬂﬁamsﬂimﬂmmwiﬁwLﬁuﬁwmﬁﬁmmqnwﬁ
Tneluil 2548 V3snuaz3Endandiimisdnionindoaz gy

The cost of sales and services in 2005: for the MFEC Group was Baht
1,151.9 million, with gross profit margin of 23.6 percent, and for MFEC

itself was Baht 972.4 million, with gross profit margin of 23.5 percent.

Considering in details of gross profit margin generated from each
business area for the company itself, the systems integration business,
maintenance service and IT professional services generated

19 percent, 45 percent and 20.4 percent respectively.

The overall gross profit margin is 23.5 percent. It could be said that the
profit margin of the systems integration business had decreased due to
the price competition tactics, though, the higher profit ratio in the latter
two business areas, which continued to grow would keep the overall

profit margin of MFEC in a satisfactory rate.

Expenses for sales activities and administration of MFEC Group and
MFEC itself in 2005 accounted for 16.9 percent and 14.5 percent of the
total revenue respectively. Employee salary and expenses took up
a large portion of overall expense, equal to 50 percent, due to the
recruitment of a large number of employees to support the expansion

of IT professional services and maintenance service businesses.

As a consequence, the net profit of the company for 2005 was

Baht 76.8 million or 6 percent of total revenue.

Financial Position
1. Assets
1.1 The components of assets

The Company and its subsidiaries' total assets as of

31 December 2004 amounted to Baht 957.6 million : defined

as current assets of Baht 805.5 million or 84.1 percent and

non-current assets of Baht 152.1 million or 15.9 percent.
1.2 The Quality of Assets

- Net inventory is valuated based on the cost of purchase
(averaging) or net worth, whichever amount is lower.

- Account receivables : according to note item number 5 of
the financial statement, the balance of all receivables was
separated by age of receivables. All receivables come from
sales of goods and services, legally valid and can be
claimed for payment.

The estimation of loss due to bad debt is based on historical

record of receivable collection and payment capability of

debtors, together with sufficiency of allowance for bad debt

allocated, by assessing each debtor's overdue balance of
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those account receivables. The allowance for doubtful debts
for the company and its subsidiaries in 2005 was amounted
to Baht 1 million. The company foresaw no risk exceeding
the determined amount of the allowance for doubtful debts
because the debtor had the ability to pay and the case was

considered normal business risk.

2. Liquidity
2.1 Cash Flow of the Company and its subsidiaries

- The cash flow from operating activities was higher than
operating profit according to the income statement due to
the depreciation cost and decrease of account receivables
in 2004.

- The cash flow from investment activities was Baht 19.2
million mainly due to the purchase of equipment to
support business expansion.

- The cash flow from financing activities in 2005 : the
Company paid dividend to shareholders Baht 100 million.

2.2 Liquidity Ratio

The company and its subsidiaries has maintained sufficient
liquidity in its operations. Their current ratio and quick ratio
were 2.1 times and 1.2 times respectively. Based on these
two ratios, to determine the Group's ability to pay short-term
debt, although it has an amount of Baht 30.3 million in cash
and transactions equivalent to cash, a substantial amount of
account receivables is due in quarter 1 of 2006. Therefore,
the Company did not have any difficulty with illiquidity or
inability to pay short-term debts.

3. Investment Expenses

The Company and its subsidiaries has continued to expand
business, but always adhered to careful investment policy.
The company itself has still invested mainly in IT Professional
Services, Research and Development and Maintenance Service
businesses, which is expected to generate high gross profit
margin, benefiting from the prospective and constant growth of
IT industry.

4. Sources of Funds

The Company gained sufficient funds from business operations,
and a line of credit from financial institutions, enabling the
company to have enough fund reserved for business expansion
and future investment.
4.1 Appropriateness of Fund Structure
The Company and its subsidiaries' debt to equity ratio as at
31 December 2005 was 0.6 time, improved from 1.1 times
at the end of 2004, and the company only’s dedt to equity
ratio was improved from 1.1 times at the end of 2004 to 0.7

times at the end of 2005, considered excellent rate. This was
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due to the decrease of total liabilities as a result of short-
term loan payment. The Group's liabilities were incurred in
the ordinary course of business transactions and mostly
had less than one-year credit term. Furthermore, the
profitable operating results in 2005 brought about
increased shareholders's equity.

4.2 Shareholders' Equity

The MFEC Group's shareholders' equity as of 31 December
2005 amounted to Baht 569.8 million and the company only’s
shareholders’s equity amounted to Baht 553.7 million,

due to the operatingperformance.

4.3 Liabilities

The MFEC Group had total liabilities, as at 31 December
2005 of Baht 387.9 million, and of Baht 331 million for the
company only mostly were short tem liability due to normal

business operation.

1 1 s .
LRULMITONR LAR GG | ervice fee
1.A1MULNUINNNIIRa U gy
vi¥uazusEndeedneanauununnIre Ty W undinew

1. External audit fee
In 2005 the company and its subsidiaries paid external audit fee

goud i faeuiydfinaluseud A i usnddwimiua in an amount of Baht 1.3 million.

1.3 ANULN
2. AUTNI0U 2. Other service fee

Tuid 2548 vSEMIEARRLUNUEMSUARLUS N TuNIRI TN In 2005 the company paid consulting fee for its investment and

v a 1 Vv ltzll = v c!l =2 P . . . -
Lmﬁaﬁnﬂumuﬂﬂaﬂiﬁ LN UInmIa TUNITIV RIS JInw acquisition plan, which included investment and legal consulting

FWNYAHETIUIN 2.6 F UM Tnelufrmanunuassnuuinistn fees in an amount of Baht 2.5 million. No outstanding fee needed

Afpsnelusassuiinainnsanasfdeliusnsiiudiess to be paid in the future due to unfinished service.
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THE COMPANY ONLY
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LIQUIDITY RATIO

Current ratio

Quick ratio

Cash from operation ratio
Receivable turnover ratio
Collection days

Inventory turnover
Average number of days sales
Account payable turnover
Payment days

Cash Cycle

PROFITABILITY RATIO
Gross profit margin
Operation profit
Quality of earnings
Return on total income
Return on equity
Return on investment

EFFICIENCY RATIO
Return on total assets
Return on fixed assets
Assets turnover

FINANCIAL POLICY RATIO
Debt to Equity ratio

Interest payment ratio
Dividend Payment

WHBLAG UFEnEINdaveuntusnlud 2547 Lﬁaomrm%ﬂ’wL%mmu‘luu%ﬂ’miaa'[uﬂ 2547

ANTHUIIN
CONSOLIDATED

2547/2004

Note : In 2004 The Company prepared consolidated financial statement since it began investing in subsidiaries in this year.
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Nontaburi 11000
Tel. 0-2951-8731
(0-2591-1420-8,0-2951-9720-9 ext. 285,286)
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The Audit Committee performed its duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board of Directors and demonstrated the
conformance to code of ethics, transparency, balance of power and
ability to perform financial audit, as well as ensured that the adequacy
of internal management and control systems were met. In 2005, the
Audit Committee conducted 5 Audit Committee meetings to discuss
substantial issues relevant to its scope of duties and responsibilities,
also attended by other involved management and Internal Auditors,
which can be summarized as follows :

1. Reviewed and approved the Company's and its subsidiaries'
2004 annual and quarterly financial statements, financial
information, any transaction that may cause conflict of interest
and disclosure of sensitive information to ensure the reliability,
transparency and conformance to standard accounting
principles and SET's principle before submitting to the Board
of Directors for approval.

2. Reviewed all the Company's and its subsidiaries' interrelated
transactions to make sure there is no conflict of interests.

3. Reviewed the performance of the Internal Audit team in 2005
to make sure that good governance practice was met and
appropriate follow-up corrections were made by work units as
agreed and within determined period as well as identified
methods and measures to minimize all risks to an acceptable
level.

4. Considered the important risks facing the Company and
utilized the information from the Company's risk management
report in analyzing and managing risks related to the Company's
operations as to minimize those risks to an acceptable level,
as well as proposed useful information for analyzing the
Company's performance.

5. Reviewed the Company's performance to ensure compliance
with the Company's and SET's principles of good corporate
governance.

6. Reviewed the report on the performance evaluation and
adequacy of the Company's internal control systems for 2005.

7. Reviewed the performance of the Company's Audit Committee
for 2005.

8. Considered the appointment of Ernst & Young Limited as the
Company's external auditor and determined the audit fee for
2005 by preparing assessment report for submitting to the
Company's Board of Directors for review and for further
approval in the shareholders' meeting.

9. Reviewed and approved the Internal Audit team's 2006 audit
plan taking into account the issues of more highly risks as higher

priority, for efficiency of the audit activities.

i -"’l—

ey f i 4
I-fﬁ"af_;f.ct. V.
Ky

Vitaya Vanduangden
Chairman of Audit Committee
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Chairman

The Board of Directors is responsible for MFEC Public Company
Limited's financial statements, including the financial information
presented in this annual report. The aforementioned financial
statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, using appropriate and consistent accounting
policy, and careful judgment and the best estimation. Important
information is adequately and transparently disclosed in the financial
statements notes to the Company shareholders and investors.
The financial statements comply with the regulations of the Stock
Enchange of Thailand and the Office of Securities and Exchange

Commission.

The Board of Directors has provided and maintained efficient internal
controls to ensure that accounting records are accurate, honest and
able to protect assets and uncover weakness in order to prevent
fraud or materially irregular operations.

In this regard, the Board of Directors has entrusted an Audit
Committee, consists of individuals who are not management of the
Company, with the responsibility to review the quality of the financial
reports and internal controls. Comments on these issues have been

included in the Audit Committee Report presented in this annual report.

The financial statements of the Company have been examined by an
external auditor, Ernst & Young Limited. In conducting their audits and
to express an opinion in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, the Company has supported all of the Company's record
and related data. The auditor's opinion is presented in the auditor's

report as part of this annual report.

The Board of Directors believes that the Company's overall internal
control system has performed satisfactorily and lent credibility and reli-
ability to MFEC Public Company Limited's financial statements for the
period ended December 31, 2005.

(wieadian Uy
Adirake Patitus

Y32 5UNTINNTLINANG
Chief Executive Officer
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To The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
MFEC Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MFEC
Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2005
and 2004, the related consolidated statements of earnings, changes in
shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
separate financial statements of MFEC Public Company Limited
for the same years. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the management of the Company and its subsidiaries
as to their correctness and the completeness of the presentation.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements

based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that | plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

| believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of MFEC Public Company
Limited and its subsidiaries and of MFEC Public Company Limited as
at 31 December 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and
cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Coencee d-

Rungnapa Lertsuwankul
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3516

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok : 22 February 2006
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uiNn Bn 1eW § § 97 (anTw) wasuisnges
MFEC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
\‘lUﬂﬁ
BALANCE SHEETS

TN 31 SUNAN 2548 e 2547 AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

QUNMTRUTIY AUNFRUANIZURILETENY
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY
ARG 2548/2005 2547/2004 2548/2005 2547/2004
/Note
(vishag: Un) (e Un) (vivhe: ) (vivhe: )
(Unit: Baht) (Unit: Baht) (Unit: Baht) (Unif: Baht)
funing ASSETS
funindmpuion CURRENTASSETS
Ruaalaz e IdeurinEuen Cash and cash equivalents 30,289,390 18,006,265 12,122,737 10,087,528
qﬂwﬁm‘ﬁﬁ Trade accounts receivable 4 446,216,748| |770,639,578| (373,127,645 (765,098,911
wn: @WLﬁawﬁmﬁmzqm Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,022,536)| | (2,234,160) -] [(2,140,000)
qnw%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ - §‘ﬂ% Trade accounts receivable - net 445,194,212 768,405,418 373,127,645 762,958,911
gnviianInifedosin Amounts due from related parties 5 862,020 2,749,484 816,214 3,776,376
duligBnunuisndey Loan to subsidiary 6 - - 700,000 900,000
FuAnAdnde Inventories 6 143,815,163 87,371,742 138,346,541 87,083,856
ﬁmuﬁwm‘[ﬂmmmaﬁﬂﬁmf‘ﬁ - gnd  Deferred program development costs - net 7 4,429,821 7,820,807 2,219,667 308,542
elgs T Eendna Unbilled income 8 115,710,364 14,090,000 97,940,398 13,130,342
el Ieamh Prepaid expenses 49,063,505 8,341,000 46,465,394 9,630,270
aum"wﬁmuﬁfﬂuﬁ'u Other current assets 16,146,400 23,842,006 9,037,965  _22,175,440
TNRUNInyuIon TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 805,510,875 930,626,722 680,776,561 910,051,265
funindluvuiion . ) NON-CURRENTASSETS
ﬁumﬂﬂnjﬁ'umiL%uﬁﬂm‘;:ﬁﬁﬂizﬁu Pledged deposits at financial institutions 38,930,765 35,465,466 38,510,009 35,047,286
Juaanuieiuiinlaeisauldide Investment accounted for under the
. equity method 9 - - 107,937,402 13,242,395
fwfingouyariuamuigindgael  Excess of cost of investments
ANty ivesyIundas over net book value of subsidiaries 10 23,845,510 3,219,557 - -
qﬂmm‘,— Z\fn% Equipment - net 65,558,719 54,591,376 58,397,192 51,529,002
Suninelaifidmnn - qnd Intangible assets - net 7,128,306 3,603,529 2,735,558 3,293,382
ﬁm%'wé'[zimguﬁﬂuﬁu Other non-current assets 11 16,634,655 3,679,321 3,462,835 3,257,167
nuﬂuﬂi'wzﬂﬁwqm"wu TOTAL NON-CURRENTASSETS 12 162,097,955 100,559,249 206,042,996 106,369,232
TnRunineg TOTAL ASSETS 6 957,608,830 1,031,185,971 886,819,557 1,016,420,497

whemalsznesun s wusuniiessunsiuil
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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uiEn n 1eW § § 97 (anTw) wazuisnges
MFEC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
YU 8(AD)
BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

b U 31 SUINAN 2548 LY 2547 AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004
UN19RUTIU JUNMS RURNIZURILITENY
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

ARNBLVG  2548/2006  2547/2004 2548/2005  2547/2004

/Note
(e um) (e un) (e un)  (rdae: L)
(Unit: Baht)  (Unit: Baht) (Unit: Boht)  (Unit: Baht)
wuﬁuuu.dmﬂmqnaﬁu LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
nuﬁuﬂqunau CURRENT LIABILITIES
NuLUﬂLﬂm.lm“?LmuNuﬂﬁvaEJuﬂu Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from
mﬂﬂmuummu financial institutions 9,13 59,648,654 151,487,339 38,021,046 151,487,339
mwumim Trade accounts payable 188,625,315 235,525,168 165,611,681 235,439,656
mwunﬂmiv{mm*nmnu . Amounts due to related parties 6 1,631,878 6,510,015 8,643,258 9,057,660
m’mumlﬂﬂfyzyﬁLﬁﬁﬂﬁiLﬂuﬁﬁoﬁW%ﬂﬁﬁz Current portion of payables under 408,134 - - -
myeﬂuwﬁﬂﬂ . finance lease agreements
wiitwyIeudn" Other current liabilities
AldIedaTne Accrued expenses 50,929,483 | | 46,274,914 | | 43,252,909 || 46,053,717
miduldifyeeadiine Corporate income tax payable 4,527,719 || 25,032,989 4,527,719 || 24,863,564
iﬁﬂiﬁ%uﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁ Deferred income 43,857,421 || 12,972,432 40,405,743 || 12,927,432
5"% %) Others 38,093,050 || 53,600,324 31,472,790 || 53,115,309
RIPEN] Total 137,407,673 137,880,659 119,659,161 136,960,022
nunuﬁunqunau TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 387,721,654 531,403,181 331,935,146 532,944,677
mﬁu‘lquunau NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
m%umuﬂmmmmmu N'Vlﬁmﬂ Payable under finance lease agreements
mwmmwumﬁumﬂ‘[wmﬂ Liabilities from investments accounted for under 131,597 - - -
wuﬂmwnmumwu%uwn“[ﬂmadm'[mLﬁﬁl equity method - - 1,200,270 -
ﬂu'nuﬁu TOTAL LIABILITIES 387,853,251 531,403,181 333,135,416 532,944,677

mnﬂms;ﬂi:ﬂamumiLGuLﬂuﬁf’;mﬁwawumnﬁuﬁ
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MFEC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
WA 8(AD)
BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

D U 31 BWINAN 2548 URE 2547 AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

N1 RUSIY AUNTRUANIZURILFEN Y
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY
‘VTN']EILVWJ 2548/2005 2547/2004 2548/2005 2547/2004
/Note
(e Un) (Whe: un)  (Wihae: uIn) (Mg U n)
(Unit: Baht) (Unit: Baht) (Unit: Baht) (Unit: Baht)
duravdfioviu SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
NuTaurn Share capital 14
nmﬂmﬁﬂu Authorised share capital
¥ty 227,000,000 it 227,000,000 ordinary shares
(2547: 200,000,000 ﬁ%) (2004: 200,000,000 ordinary shares)
yarruaz 1 UM of Baht 1 each 227,000,000 200,000,000 227,000,000 200,000,000
nuﬁaammzﬁﬁiz p! Issued and fully paid share capital
¥uadity 217,000,000 it 217,000,000 ordinary shares
(2547: 200,000,000 ﬁu) (2004: 200,000,000 ordinary shares)
yad sz 1 UM of Baht 1 each 217,000,000 200,000,000 217,000,000 200,000,000
duiugarviuandy Premium on ordinary shares 218,719,324 142,273,665 218,719,324 142,273,665
RISRERIY Retained earnings
IFIIUEY - §1I09ENNOYINIY  Appropriated - statutory reserve 16 16,205,100 12,367,000 16,205,100 12,367,000
faldlddnmes Unappropriated 101,759,717 128,835,155 101,759,717 128,835,155
TnmeiievuresLigny Equity attributable to the Company’s shareholders 553,684,141 483,475,820 553,684,141 483,475,820
duvesdiieviuduiosvesuigneas Minority interest - equity attributable to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries 16,071,438 16,306,970 - -
T mreiau TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 569,756,579 499,782,790 553,684,141 483,475,820
nuﬂi'fﬁuunzdm‘na\lﬁﬁaﬁu TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 957,608,830 1,031,185,971 886,819,557 1,016,420,497

‘mmm@ﬂixnamumiﬁw,ﬁumuwfmmwmi@uﬁ
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MFEC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
sunlinnanu
STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

b JUN 31 SWINAN 2548 URZ 2547 AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

UN19RUTU IUN1TRURNIZUBNLITEN
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

VIHNELUG) 2548/2005 2547/2004 2548/2005  2547/2004

/Note
(vhe: ) (Wihe: um)  (Whe: b)) (e uan)
(Unit: Baht) ~ (Unit: Baht)  (Unit: Baht)  (Unit: Baht)
Teld REVENUES
iﬁﬂiﬁ‘ﬂlﬁﬂﬂ’ﬁﬂﬂﬁlLLﬂZﬂ’]ﬂﬁU%ﬂ’]i Sales and service income 1,508,643,122 1,419,169,194  1,271,256,952 1,414,203 ,981
Teléau Other income 8,896,141 9,130,627 6,623,079 9,117,438
Tweld TOTAL REVENUES 1.517.539.263 1,428,299,821  1,277.880.031 1.423,321.419
Alde EXPENSES
ﬁuﬂummmzmﬁﬁ'ﬁmi Cost of sales and services 1,151,885,795 1,057,234,350 972,396,639 1,052,766,275
AldaeTunnseenazusnng Selling and administrative expenses 254,737,752 186,638010 183,766,124 187,005,164
dmLLﬂﬁnﬂ‘qmﬁnLﬁmmmmﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁﬂ Share of loss from investments accounted
for under the equity method - - 10,205,263 437,604
ANMDULNUNTINNNT Directors' remuneration 17 1,188,000 1,188,000 1,188,000 1,188,000
T ldee ) TOTAL EXPENSES 1,407.811,547 1245060360 1,167,556,026 1,.241,397,043
flsreunenidesnauazndiduld EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST
EXPENSE AND INCOME TAX 109,727,716 183,239,461 110,324,005 181,924,376
ﬂaﬂLﬁlEJ‘ﬂ"]ﬂ INTEREST EXPENSE (3.937.248) (248,122 (3.376.502) (237 403)
mﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁqﬂﬂﬂ CORPORATE INCOME TAX 18 (30651329)  (47.255371) _ (30,185841) _ (47.101.069)
mlswdsnBtuldifiyana EARNINGS AFTER CORPORATE INCOME TAX 75139139 135735968 76761662 134585904
(ﬁﬂ,i)mmquﬁdmﬁLﬂmaqﬁﬁaﬁumuﬁaﬂ MINORITY INTEREST 1622503 (1,150,064) - -
ﬁw'liqnﬁd'm%'uﬂ NET EARNINGS FOR THE YEAR 76,761,662 134,585904 76,761,662 134,585,904
ﬁﬂﬁeiaﬁu%uﬁyuﬁm BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
ﬁw'liqnﬁ Net earnings 0.37 0.67 0.37 0.67
v'wmuﬁ'umﬁ'ruﬁ'amﬁ'ﬂdwﬁmﬁ’n (oW Weighted average number of ordinary shares 209967123 200,000,000  209.967,123 200,000,000
(shares)

winemgUznessundwdudmniisresiuniaiui
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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ITS SUBSIDIARIES

MFEC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND

NI UFLIUER

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

IUN19RUTY

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

IUNTRURNIZ BTN

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY
RHBLAR 2548/2005 2547/2004 2548/2005 2547/2004
/Note
(vivhe: 1) (Ve Un) (b un) (vihe: um)
(Unit: Bahty  (Unit: Bahb) (Unit: Baht) (Unit: Baht)
NIZUNEUFIAINAINTTNAN AWK Cash flows from operating activities
lagnaaniu Net earnings for the year 76,761,662 134,585,904 76,761,662 134,585,904
iwmiﬂ%’um:maamﬁﬂﬁqwﬁlﬂu Adjustments to reconcile net
Wuandy (318) gnd earnings to net cash
INNINTINA AU - provided by (paid for) operating activities: -
AidenTmuazAdasmie Depreciation and amortisation 32,661,571 23,245,766 26,607,066 22,380,838
ﬁﬂLﬁawﬁﬁaﬁﬂazqm Bad debt (2,365,679) 1,071,660 (2,140,000) 977,500
STV N IURIUAH Share of loss from investments
Bl accounted for under the equity method - - 10,205,263 437,604
N UBAIRAT UGN Amortisation premium on investment
yara N idnaneg in subsidiaries 6,838,368 - - -
ﬁﬂimﬂrmsmaqﬂﬂmf Gain on disposal of equipment (334,412) (727,103)  (354,318) (740,360)
dawvesiioviuduiosluinls (:nAnw)  Net earnings (loss) attributed to (1,622,523) __ 1,150,064 - -
gnodmIud . minority interests
flsnmssdiuenunennisidfeustadls  Earnings from operating activities
Funswduazniianfinem before changes in operating assets
and liabilities 111,038,987 159,326,291 111,079,673 157,641,486

FunIneanLinann (LVTIIN%%) AARY
Qﬂwfzmiﬁw .
2o 44 . o
gnnitiansfiiedeein
3 9
FuAmurie
E?m%wa’muﬁauﬁ'ul
auﬁwﬁ[ﬂmmimﬁu
wiauA AN (anav)
W nitnnad
EmitiensfiAedosin
wf:é‘umuﬁauf{u
Tduaagndldnnan (14lulw)
AINTINALTHIN

Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Trade accounts receivable
Amounts due from related parties
Inventories
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade accounts payable
Amounts due to related parties
Other current liabilities
Net cash from (used in) operating activities

ninemgUznasunmadwdudunisresuniatui
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

373,480,933 (548,819,728)

391,971,266 (548,541,141)

1,910,789 10,993,944 2,960,162 9,971,044
(42,996,626) (39,097,957) (51,262,685) (38,810,071)
(110,287,500) (20,771,454)(110,418,830) (19,465,060)
(10,990,818) (2,375,897) (205,668) (680,027)
(68,858,976) 156,265,432 (69,827,975) 156,447,873

(4,903,029) 2,496,730 (414,402) 5,943,194
(11,422,529) 96,588,756 (17,300,861) 96,170,033

237,871,231 (185,393,883) 256,580,680 (181,322,669)
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MFEC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
JUNISURLIUEA (#D)

D JUA 31 BWINAN 2548 URE 2547

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

UN1TRUTIU

IUN1TRURNIZUBNLITEN

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY
RHBLAR 254872005 2547/2004 2548/2005 2547/2004
/Note
(yhae: ) (e uan)  (vidae: um) (vivhe: um)
(Unit: Bahh)  (Unit: Baht)  (Unit: Baht) (Unit: Baht)
NITUNITUTAINAINTINOIU Cash flows from investing activities

NWNINEONTUNITRUARNTE Decrease (increase) in pledged deposits
AUz (Lﬂ'wfu) AN with financial institutions (3,465,200) 9,625,222 (3,462,723) 10,043,402
Nusay (37e) ﬁnnmi%aﬁmmu Cash receipt from (paid for) purchase 19,792,048 747,343 (7,649,895) (13,680,000)

of investments

Lﬁﬂﬁﬁ’ﬁmdu‘%ﬁ’m‘amﬁwfu G Increase (decrease) in loan to subsidiary - - 200,000  (900,000)
L\mﬂmm’mmwwaﬂﬂim Cash receipt from sales of equipment 1,031,494 1,995,137 609,889 1,995,137
Lquﬁmmm‘[mﬁ%@aﬂnim Cash paid for purchase of equipment (35,175,674) (37,556,192) (27,155,331) (35,413,356)

Guansnelumadorunsweluiisaem,
indusagns Il IuAanasuamu
NIZUNIUEANAINTIHIANIE Y
L?mn,ﬁﬂLﬁuﬁm%uakunﬂm“a"éﬁ
mﬂﬁmuummw,wmu (ana)

Cash paid for purchase of intangible assets
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts
and short-term loans from

(1,346,889) (38,810,128)

(1,017,672) (8,532,165)

(19,164,320) (28,998,618)

(38,475,732) (41,486,982)

financial institutions (103,704,877) 68,507,256 (113,466,293) 69,005,669
Louiumi”mwmwwﬂu Receipt of increased share capital 525,000 - - -
m‘lmmﬂmﬁaanwmwmm Expenses concerning the offering (2,604,446) - (2,604,446) -
of its increasing share capital
L*i]’wﬁmuéﬁyrywLﬂhmiﬁuamm Decrease in finance lease agreements (640,463) - -

NuTunaang
Tduaagnildinan (14w
AANTININAIU

LGHGWLLW’T]HH’]?LV]HULVI’]
Lauﬁmwmu (anQv) ﬁ“nﬁ

Dividend paid
Net cash from (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

(99,999,000) (66,000,000)

(99,999,000) (66,000,000)

(206,423,786) 2,507,256

(216,069,739) (3,005,669)

12,283,125 (211,885,245)

2,035,209 (219,803,982)

RusalazMenisuvintuan - fud Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 18,006,265 229,891,510 10,087,528 229,891,510
RuaalazTenIieuituan - Uaned  Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 30,289,390 _18,006,265 12,122,737 _10,087,528
foyanszuauan \Dameinfis: - Supplementary disclosures of cash
flows information: -
Nusadeszniddmiu: - Cash paid during the year for: -
penuesne Interest expense 4,177,060 241,251 3,165,796 237,403
mwuvlmmmﬂa Corporate income tax 52,281,471 22,318,709 50,521,686 22,237,505
5’180’15VIN1‘HL\‘1%§® - Non-cash transaction: -
aanuuawzymemmumﬁﬁ:mﬁumﬁry Issuing ordinary shares to pay for the acquisition 96,050,000 - 96,050,000 -

of invetsment

ninamgUznasumadwdudumitisesuniatiui
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MFEC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
) va v
\ml.l.ﬂﬂ\'m'mﬂnwuﬂmdmmmqnauu
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FuTSUEATUN 31 SWINAN 2548 UL 2547 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 and

JLMNS RURNZURNLITEN™
nnlsazau

TndT5Ua2d1904 IndT5Ua2d1904 TndT5Ua2d1904 falulnanass 39U
AIUNYVUIE AIUNYVUIE ANUNHVUE uag: um)

THE COMPANY ONLY
Issued and Premium on Retained earnings

paid-up ordinary Appropriated Unappropriated Total
share capital shares - statutory reserve (Unit: Baht)

Mll']EIL‘VTﬁl/NOTe

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂlﬂﬁ‘ﬂﬁuﬂ 2547 200,000,000 142,773,665 5,610,000 67,106,251 415,389,916
Balance - beginning of year 2004

ﬂﬂﬂﬁnammnumimwmwmwwu - (500,000) - - (500,000)
Expense concerning the offering of its

increasing share capital

iwmﬁwﬂﬂmu%‘lmumiwwmwu - (500,000) - - (500,000)
Unrealised transactlon in earnlngs

statement

ﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬁ’]ﬁiuﬂ 2547 = = - 134,585,904 134,585,904
Net earnings for the year 2004

Touludsasmungmane 16 - - 6,857,000 (6,857,000) -
Transfer to Statutory reserve

WuiTunaane 19 - - - (66,000,000) (66,000,000)
Dividends paid

gonpiindeUaed 2547 200,000,000 142,273,665 12,367,000 128,835,155 483,475,820
Balance - end of year 2004

ﬁ%ﬁ’]}JﬂJLWN‘ﬂ% 14 17,000,000 79,050,105 - - 96,050,105
Increase in share capital

ﬂﬂ‘ﬂﬁnaannumimﬁmwumﬂwu 14 - (2,604,446) - - (2,604,446)
Expense concerning the offering of its
increasing share capital

ﬂ’]v[,iﬂﬂﬁﬁ’lﬁiuﬂ 2548 - - - 76,761,662 76,761,662
Net earnings for the year 2005

Toulugsasmungmane - - 3,838,100 (3,838,100) -
Transfer to Statutory reserve

WuiTunaane 19 - - - (99,999,000) (99,999,000)
Dividends paid

gamAunieUanei 2548 217,000,000 218,719,324 16,205,100 101,759,717 553,684,141
Balance - end of year 2005

wnewinUsznasumadwdudmnisressuntiug
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MFEC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
o va v
wusasnTlf eunlassuse o u
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

gasudaugaiun 31 SwneN 2548 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
JUNTTIRUTIY
finlsazay druasgiiavu
Tna95U8241909  ATIUAIE19RY  ARATTURIEIsRY  dalulAandss dutlan 394
ANUNYNUE ANUNGNUE ANUNYNUIE AT Endan (2 1)
CONSOLIDATED
Issued and Premium on Retained earnings Minority
paid-up ordinary Appropriated  Unappropriated interests in Total
share capital shares - statutory reserve subsidiaries (Unit: Baht)
Vuneme)/Note
ﬂﬂﬂﬂ\llﬂﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ 2547 200,000,000 142,773,665 5,510,000 (67,106,251) - 415,389,916
Balance - beginning of year 2004
m‘[*ﬂmﬂmmﬂumimwmwmwmu - (500,000) - - - (500,000)
Expense concerning the ofFenng of its
increasing share capital
enandilaivilusiilsmenu - (500,000) - - - (500,000)
Unrealised transaction in earnings
statement
i) Lﬁuamu‘luu%ﬁ’m‘ammdwﬂ - - - - 15,156,906 15,156,906
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries
during the year.
ﬂ’ﬂ‘iﬂ‘ﬂﬁﬁ’miuﬂ 2547 - - - 134,585,904 - 134,585,904
Net earnlngs for the year 2004
mmaqwnawummaa“lumwaaa - - - - 1,150,064 1,150,064
Increase in mlnonty interests
Tauv[ﬂmsaﬂmmg%mﬂ 16 - - 6,857,000 (6,857,000) - -
Transfer to statutory reserve
NuTuaaINe 19 - - - (66,000,000) - (66,000,000)
Dividends paid
Uﬂﬂﬂ\llﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁ’lﬂﬂ 2547 200,000,000 142,273,665 12,367,000 128,835,155 16,306,970 499,782,790
Balance - end of year 2004
wuammwwu 14 17,000,000 79,050,105 - - - 96,050,105
Increase in share capital
ﬂ’ﬁ“ﬁ']&]LﬂEJ’JﬂUﬂ’W‘i‘ﬂ’M%’WEM%LWNVM 14 - (2,604,446) - - - (2,604,446)
Expense concerning the offermg of its
increasing share capital
mvhammmuﬂ 2548 - - - 76,761,662 (1,622,523) 75,139,139
Net earnlngs for the year 2005
Ui‘i&WlEJaEJLiﬂﬂ“ﬂﬁ‘iuﬂﬁﬁuﬁwwﬂﬂﬂ - - - - 525,000 525,000
A subsidiary called up the value of its
share during the year
ﬁamuawwiwaamvmwﬂ - - - - 861,991 861,991
Purchase of investment in subsidiary
during the year
Tauv[ﬂﬁﬁaﬂmmg%mﬂ - - 3,838,100 (3,838,100) - -
Transfer to statutory reserve
NuTuNaINe 19 - - - (99,999,000) - (99,999,000)
Dividends paid
ﬂﬂﬂﬂ\llﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁ’lﬂﬂ 2548 217,000,000 218,719,324 16,205,100 101,759,717 16,071,438 569,755,579

Balance - end of year 2005

vinamgUznasumadwdudumitisesuniatiui
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to financial statements

nNEIMAUIZNELILNIILTY
ﬁ'm"s'uﬂﬁyuqm’fuﬁ 31 SUIAN 2548 UAZ 2547
1. foymialy
3 1B 1ow 8 8 S Tddadoduniinsfamangranslng
U%ﬁ’mﬂizﬂauﬁmmﬂuﬂizmﬂvlmlLLa:ﬁWLﬂuqiﬁawﬁ’nﬁaﬁwwmﬂ
|PRasRoNTIABIAZ T UUABNAIAD 3N ETNNILS M TR TeY ﬁagj
YOILTENY muﬁﬂmmﬁﬂuﬁu’qaq o 18971 699 oAslumeTe Ty
MeT UUATUATUNT UINEIUNAN LIATIUNAN NTINWHINUAT
doTudl 1 nangian 2546 vFEMYIFRAnzideuuLianwTu
U3namausiiauaziAendonssnitu "u3n Bn oW 3 § s
(NVNT)" AUNTENT WS Lm:"lmﬁammﬂm 2546 AANANANNINE
Lm'qﬂixmﬂiwﬂﬁ%uﬁumﬁ:ymmu’%ﬁmLﬂmé’ﬂw%’wﬁﬁmmﬁau
2. nannmrilwnIvavinsunIiuTN
GUﬂ’]iLGWJ’JN%W/T’]%%I@EJ?QMUQ@ o Ul 31 Sunen 2548
ey 2547 \mrﬂﬁmmuﬁwm”uﬂﬁyuqumﬁEJ’JrTmmLm'ﬂzﬂma\i
V3 B0 oW B @ Saiin () (FedeluiBendn "w3ene") Taed
UsWndeatiaiinluazningd fo usen Tumesuresn Suiitnadu
weimas i uswn 1Bn. lo. . wriTedad s1in uay
U3¥n aneudnd (1995) A F9u3mne VLé’S?}’aLGumnu‘[uU%gw

@

ananuileuil 1 Aquien 2548

e funindgniresitn Tunasunadn Bufiinst wesima

a
1Y @

F0m (B To wea") uazuSHndes o 5’uﬁmnuﬂiznau€hﬂﬁﬂmﬁ
sl ;

Funswe
Assets
:
funine
NUERALAZIIBNIAg LTI UER
Cash and cash equivalents
Funswddn
Other assets
TINRUNSNG
Toytal assets
SPGIN
 Liabilties
LPaIa
Other Iiabijjties
TINVITE
Total liabilities
TRunindgnd
Total net asset value
NP IWNN IR UTDILIEN (30802)
Equity of the Company (%)
auw%’wﬁqwﬁiu&’ﬂdamﬁmV;mmu'%ﬂ'm
AttribLthabIe net asset value
AT (ﬁuﬁnﬁm%maoﬂ%ﬂ’m 17 §uu)
Purchase price (17,000,000 new ordinary shares)
duwsesniedeiiginingaddunindgns

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

MFEC Company Limited was incorporated as a limited
company under Thai laws. The Company operates in Thailand
and its principal activity is sales of computer and computer
system and provision of related services. The Company's
registered office is located at 699 Modernform Tower, Srinakarindr
Road, Suan Luang, Bangkok.

On 1 July 2003, the Company registered the change of its
status to a public company and the change of its name to "MFEC
Public Company Limited" with the Commerce Ministry. In October
2003, the Stock Exchange of Thailand approved the Company's
application to list its ordinary shares as securities.

2. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

These consolidated financial statements include the balance
sheets of MFEC Public Company Limited hereinafter referred to
as "the Company", as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 and its
subsidiaries. During the year, the Company acquiring three
additional subsidiaries - Modernform Integration Services Company
Limited, M.1.S. Outsourcing Company Limited, and Skyblitz (1995)
Company Limited - through investment made on 1 June 2005.
The net asset value of Modernform Integration Services
Company Limited ("MIS") and its subsidiaries, at the acquisition

date, consisted of the following :

(¥138 : Un)
(Unit : Baht)

19,792,048
97,426,862

117,218,910

45,022,775
45,022,775
72,196,135

99.99
72,196,135
96,050,000

23,853,865

Excess of the cost of the investment over attributable net asset value

L‘\‘mﬁmha%yaLﬁumnﬂm%ﬁ’wdaa

Cash paid for acquisition of investment in subsidiary
N WHEALAZIEN I BUINRwERTeIUI e
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary
Lﬁuﬂﬂ%umﬂmﬁaLﬁuaﬂnuiuu%ﬂ'wﬂaﬂ

Cash receipt from acquisition of investment in subsidiary

(19,792,048)

(19,792,048)
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U%ﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁﬁ’uﬁnmmaqé’funumﬁyaLﬁumnwffgﬂﬂdmﬂmmuﬁtﬁﬂuaﬂ
funwduaznitaniiszyld a1 Suiidoros 18u To 10w 1TuGUNIWSuaznens
dnsnhemsisidusaduom s 9 ilesnndenivseen sy wiwi
N3 edeganinyaenastidees Bx lo 1od wrelfiAnzTond
utvisnyluewanlugusasnsvenegmgsialiniedu

HamId i ueesuTEn Bx lo e uazuisndeelimmegluunatu
TATUAINA TSy e

Tusezninslagunad 1 989 2548 U%ﬁ'ﬂ%ﬂ'ﬂﬁl‘ﬁ’ﬁzmﬁuﬁ?uﬁﬁﬂL%‘EJﬂ“ﬁ’]iz
Tdasudndum 7.65 dmumldiuusen s 98wn s1dn Ferinld
5ﬂmuﬁmmu‘[uﬁﬁwﬁmdnLﬁwimﬂn%’aaaz 35.05 WuSeeny 51.00

The Company records the net excess of the cost of purchase of MIS
over the attributable portion of the book value of its identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date as an asset and is amortising
it over 5 years since the Company's management believes that such
excess will generate future benefit in terms of the expansion of

business lines.

The operating results of MIS and subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements since the date at acquisition by

the Company.

The Company's shareholding in 4Bizinet Company Limited has been
increased from 35.05 percent to 51.00 percent since the Company had
paid in the uncalled portion of the share price, amounting to Baht 7.65

million, in the first quarter of 2005.

é’mﬁaaam@\amiﬁaﬁ:ﬂﬂw%ﬁm
JUN 31 DWINAN

UIENeoe

Subsidiary companies

2548/2005
Soenz %

Percentage of shareholding
31 December

aniEgIng
Principal activities

2547/2004
Soenz %

A o a A
visndesidelnsuisny

UIBN weewyiwnl I71nm 60.00
Promptnow Company Limited

U3 S 9%wn i 51.00
4Bizinet Company Limited

U3 wemud Buwmnadiaud TuAsudd siin 51.00
Advance Intelligence Modernity Company Limited

U3 Tuwmesunesy uiinsdy wesisas s1in 99.99

Modernform Integration Services Company Limited

USEndeenfion uwuium lunasunesy Buinsdi wesiawrs 911n

Held by Modernform Integration Services Company Limited

wEuasIraeTuie
vugunsniBiinnseiind
Develops the entertainment
application on mobile device

60.00

35.05 FueenuuL WaRUAzI M,
lsunsnldavuvreniimesuas
BUmDsIUA

Designs and develops web-based

business Application

Fudaden WawuazImue
Tusunsnreniameslneianzdethuds
Develops entertainment mobile
games and Application

51.00

- AU BLATDIABNILADS
uazTuSmsfiAendes
Sale of computer and provision
of related services

138N 8. lo. 10d. wmesads siin 80.00
M.I.S. Outsourcing Company Limited
USHN eneudand (1995) I1A 99.99

SkyBlitz (1995) Company Limited
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Production, import and sale of
computer and computer software
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Development and sale of
computer software




ﬁuﬂ%'wﬂ‘LLﬂ:‘nﬂﬁ'ﬂJa@U%ﬁwEiaﬂ%ﬁ’)magﬂuﬂun’]iL@m’mﬁﬂLﬂuﬂ"ﬁmu The percentage of total assets and total revenues of the subsidiaries
Uazanmioenzdiad included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows :

dnI3eeaznstanauNSNEvaIUIEMeae dnnSeeazrateanineldetusingas
Forineg IWUARTIN Formeglwuilananuindmiudaugn
o JUN 31 SUINAN TN 31 DUNAN
Percentage of total assets included in consoli- Percentage of total revenue sincluded in
dated balance sheet as at consolidated statement of earnings
31 December for the years ended 31 December
usenees - 2548/2005 2547/2004 2548/2005 2547/2004
Subsidiary companies
UTEN wIanyiuna d1in 05 0.3 0.4 0.1

Promptnow Company Limited

U3 TS 9%wn aim 4.7 2.3 3.1 0.5
4Bizinet Company Limited

U3 weaud Buwmnadiaud TuAsudd siin 0.3 0.3 = =
Advance Intelligence Modemnity Company Limited

U3Hn Tuwmesunasu duinsdu wesiaws $in 7.9 = 12.0 =
Modernform Integration Services Company Limited

U3 8. le. o8 o viTesade $in 1.0 = 0.6 =
M.I.S. Outsourcing Company Limited

U snneudnd (1995) IAAm 2.1 - = =
SkyBlitz (1995) Company Limited

qumilﬁuﬁw%’uﬂﬁuﬁmi’uﬁ 31 SuAN 2548 Y89U58M Bx. le. 8. The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 of

w0 iTesad $7im ‘ﬁ'qiwagﬂmum31,’\’1maz4fiff,é'mmaaﬂﬂﬂ@ﬁﬂuﬁtﬁé"u M.I.S. Outsourcing Co., Ltd. which are included in the consolidated

Tneflsandunsndsin eldsm Lﬁumnuﬁlﬂﬁ’uﬁﬂ‘[ﬂﬂ’glﬁ'd?uvlﬁt,ﬁﬁlLLﬂz financial statements were audited by other auditor. Its aggregate

ﬁml,l,i_i\‘lﬁﬂiﬁnnL?mmnumﬁﬁdmiﬁlﬁﬂﬁqﬁ assets, revenues, investments accounted for under equity method
and share of profit from investments accounted for under equity method
are as follows :

(AvaE: AU
(Unit : Baht)

duasmuiaiuiinlag sauutrilsnniduaou
aay v o . -
FunSnen Teldam Admldide pnwIDTuleLRe

Total assets Total revenues | Investments accounted Share of profit from
for under equity investments accounted
method for under equity method

U3 8. To. 1ed. wwiesde 3in 11 10 5 1.6
M.I.S. Outsourcing Company Limited
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gaAiuaIIIBILIENYUAZ NI oW UID IS0 Tuaudldsinaen
NIV IIUTINTUED

L’Gmmﬂun%ﬁ’wEJ'E)ﬂmmwmﬁﬁ‘ﬁyamﬁ’uyjamﬁm%’wEj'qwﬁmwﬁ’:ﬁsnm
viEndos o ?u%yaﬁu Tavnnavauiuuazwadslduanadnguning
maléiide "d’ml,ﬁma\iﬁamLﬁmmuﬁlgjandwaaﬁwmuﬁ’tﬁmmu’%ﬁmaﬂ"
wazsindmsheneluszezina 3 Juas 5 4

3. ulewenmmloinadcy
\mmiLﬁufré’]’ﬂﬁﬁ%umummgmmﬁﬁ’ry%maiﬁwniwﬁrytﬁﬁimﬁw
Tyd WA 2547 wleunenIydnddresussnyuasusindes
Tmﬂﬁqﬂﬂvﬁ”\am‘aiﬂft :

a1 mifuinelduasenldsne
51ﬂiﬁ'ﬁnﬂmwwi”uj’l,ﬁavlﬁﬁwauﬁuﬁ'wLmﬂaumwﬁwﬁ
Tuduilinugndudn mﬂv[ﬁﬁ]Wﬂmﬂﬁ’ﬁmﬁuﬁmu%umw
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Outstanding balances between the Company and the subsidiary
companies, significant intercompany transactions, investment balance
in the Company's books and share capital of the subsidiary companies

are eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

The purchase cost of investment in subsidiary companies and the net
book value of such subsidiary companies at the time of acquisition
have been eliminated and the difference thereof has been shown as an
asset under the heading of "Excess of cost of investments over net
book value of the subsidiaries" and has been amortised within
3 years and 5 years.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with accounting standards enunciated under the Accounting

Profession Act B.E. 2547. Significant accounting policies adopted

by the Company and its subsidiaries are summarised below.

3.1 Revenue and expenses recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when products are
delivered and title passes to customers. Service revenue
is recognised by reference to the stage of completion.

Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and deposits at
financial institutions with an original maturity of three months

or less from the deposit date and free of restrictions.

3.3 Trade accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful
accounts
Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable
value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided by
evaluating payment ability of the accounts receivable at
the end of the year, taking into account overdue balance of
each debtor.

3.4 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (average method)
and net realisable value. Allowance for obsolete

inventories is made for slow-moving and obsolete stocks.

3.5 Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries in the financial statements of
the Company is stated under the equity method of
accounting. Under this method, the investment is recorded
at cost with the excess of the cost of investment over the
attributable net assets at the date of acquisition being
amortised over a period of three years and five years. For
each subsequent period, the investments are adjusted to
incorporate the Company's proportionate share of the

operating results of the subsidiaries.




3.6 guninfunzAudensiman

3.7

3.8

3.9

q'ﬂmrﬁmmmmwmnmﬁqﬁnmLal‘amwmﬁzm uazeALions
fogrvesauning (819) fﬁLﬁamwmmmqﬂmrﬁﬁwmmmn
Meuesfunindlagliifidunsinnengmsliou (antu
Funsndunadssnndildunaed 2542 Hfiﬁaammawiqm)

ca 1

muegnIlFulpetszinomesiuninddsieluil

FoSurqeRunindian - 5 {
gunsnian - 5 {
PIUNIHUS - 5 d

Tddnspeedensendwsuiunsndssninenesis

funwdluddmm
5uw%’weﬁﬂﬁﬁmmﬂué\’unmaﬂﬂiLmimawﬁuLmai‘ﬁlﬁlsﬂu
NNIANHI 57}\1LLN@\‘1Hﬁﬁ’l@l’mﬁﬂ’lnuﬁ’ﬂﬁ’]ﬁmﬁﬁﬂﬂEJﬁzﬁN
ﬂ'nGTmfwuhﬂm@qIﬂiLmim@Nﬁuma{ﬁﬂmmmnﬂmnu
lneiBeananaanigunnengnildoulaetszanm s

fygdin1Teu
viEndostiuiing e NGy NI wduiuning
Lmef‘fﬁuﬁ"gmﬁmmﬁwﬁ’mwmqﬁﬁﬁmmﬁm%’wéﬁlLﬂw
ol i’uﬁ'Léué’fmaﬁ&'fytywLbﬁmf‘saHaﬁﬂﬂwﬁmaﬁwmuﬁu%uﬁw
Afossremudygududusdswulaazainit delddan
manﬁﬂmu&’:yrynLﬂh@fmﬁ”ﬂmﬁmamLﬁaﬁwmmyjamﬂﬁﬁ;ﬁu
maﬁwmwﬁu%uﬁwﬁﬁa%hamuﬁfytywnh Tﬂaﬂamﬁmhngﬂ
TuinaHeee 9 Aaenegig i IneonnIMADT8Y
LﬁwwﬁmﬁuﬁmmﬁLﬁﬂmilﬁaﬂwm'a:qm

WuaTelIEind
ensfitwduaanaszinadeiniusznineduasedu
Sunnlaeldsmauanden o SuiifiAnsentsaundnduay
wianTun uiuTuEuaenoss indrawmde o i’uﬁimmﬂa
wasenutusuumlnel48nuanuaen o i’uﬁ‘[muqa s
eI IEAnaseRILanIUA sus T usTunn T wly
axl¥8nTinnasiuiuunm

rﬁiim:mmuﬁ' iAnnnaasuudasudnsuanideuld
sweg lunadmwiswan s iunn Asssilendyyiuan
Waswiuansnasemes i dodudn 19 enaensz ey
LINTBIRYYN

3.6 Equipment and depreciation
Equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).
Depreciation of equipment is calculated by reference to their
costs on a straight-line basis (except certain assets which
acquired after 1999 are calculated based on double

declining method) over the estimated useful lives as

follows :

Leasehold improvement - 5 years
Other equipment - 5 years
Vehicles - 5 years

No depreciation has been provided for construction

in progress.

3.

~

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent the cost of software used in
operations are presented at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation of intangible assets is stated
calculated by reference to their costs on the double

declining basis over the period of 5 years.

3.8 Financial leases
The subsidiary companies recorded vehicles under finance
leases as assets and liabilities in the balance sheets at
amounts equal at the inception of the lease to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of
the minimum lease payments. In calculating the present
value of the minimum lease payments, the discount factor
used is the interest rate implicit in the lease agreements.
The interest charge is recorded to periods during the lease
term on the remaining balance of the liability for each

period.

3.9 Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht
at the rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency
outstanding at the balance sheet date are translated into
Baht at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date with the
exception of those covered by forward exchange contracts

with financial institutions, at the contracted rate.

Exchange gains and losses are included in determining
earnings. Premiums paid for forward exchange contracts
are amortised over the period of the contracts are included

in determining earnings.
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3.10

3.11

3.12

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net
earnings for the year by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year held by external

parties.

Financial instruments
The Company has no policy to speculate in or engage in

the trading of any financial derivative instruments.

Financial instruments carried in the balance sheet include
cash and deposits at financial institutions, trade accounts
receivable, trade accounts payable, bank overdrafts and
short-term loans from financial institutions and amounts due
to/from related parties. The particular recognition methods
adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements

associated with each item.

Use of accounting estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates for certain accounting
transactions, affecting amounts reported in the financial
statements and notes related thereto. Subsequent actual

results may differ from these estimates.

4. WTUEALBZINENITABULY LI NEA
NUFALAZINENITAIUWYINRUEN b TUil 31 SUINAN 2548 UL 2547

4. CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2005 and 2004

Uszneufesnensaeieluil consist of the followings :

(vihe: auuIn)
(Unit : Baht)

JUNNTNRRNIEIDILTENY

JUNNTRUIIN

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY
2548/2005 2547/2004 2548/2005 2547/2004
S5 156,546 137,989 60,000 75,000
Cash on hand
RurnnszuaTe Tulazeaansweg 30,132,844 17,868,276 12,062,737 10,012,528
Current accounts and saving accounts
TINIUFAUNE TN ISV UER 30,289,390 18,006,265 12,122,737 10,087,528

Cash and cash equivalents
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5. qnm{n'nﬁ"l 5. TRADEACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

goRgnuinIIAn oh Tui 31 SuNAN 2548 UAZ 2547 LENATNDIYNT The aging of outstanding trade accounts receivable balance as
Adtaldsdl at 31 December 2005 and 2004 are as follows :
(vihe : un)
(Unit : Baht)
IUNTNHIIN JUNITRRIRNIZIDILITENY
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY
2548/2005 2547/2004 2548/2005 2547/2004

88N 3 Lo 430,649,193 733,295,534 365,677,645 728,846,481
Less than 3 months
3 - 6 lfow 9,704,843 2,945,434 4,470,000 2,375,980
3 - 6 months
6 - 12 Lfian 3,272,336 26,388,260 2,980,000 26,155,000
6 - 12 months

. o ¥
N 12 Wenduly 2,590,376 8,010,350 = 7,721,450
More than 12 months
Pt 446,216,748 770,639,578 373,127,645 765,098,911
Total
wn: Anieniise s gy (1,022,536) (2,234,160) = (2,140,000)
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts
gnvifin13fn - qnd 445,194,212 768,405,418 373,127,645 762,958,911

Trade accounts receivable — net
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6. swamsqiﬁvﬁ’uﬁqmiﬁerm'i’mﬁ‘u
Tmzwdwﬂu‘%ﬁ’mﬂswmsqiﬁﬁ]ﬁﬁnﬁ’tyﬁ’uﬁﬁwﬂaEJ (%ﬂv’w""mﬂaml,l,é"g
Tun1399risun138uTIN) Wz USTnTiAeTai (Aedesiulaed
Q’ﬁaﬁmmxm%anﬁumﬁ'wﬁ’u) eIt winannidsszanny

amnInagUldae -

J18n1IN VLT ENY oe:
Transactions with subsidiaries:

PBFUAILAZUINT
Sales of goods and services

TafuuazuINg
Purchases of goods and services

Taguninfdineu
Purchase of office equipment

penideFudmiuiuliiinsesdu
Interest income

o me o d o
TemInuuisninefeein
Transactions with related companies:

PRFUAILAZUINT
Sales of goods and services

TafuFuazuINg
Purchases of goods and services

Tagunanfdinem
Purchases of office equipment

AndIneuazAILINIINNeI TR
Rental and related service expenses
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a LYY,

JUNINUIIN

CONSOLIDATED

2548/2005 2547/2004
7.1 1.6
6.8 45
2.1 48
6.1 5.0

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years, the Company had significant business
transactions with its subsidiaries (which have already been
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements), related
companies (related by the way of common shareholders
and / or common directors). Such transactions are summarised

below :

(¥ivhe : un)

(Unit : Baht)

uTamamiﬁﬂmmwm
Pricing policy

JUNNTERRNTE

YDILTENY
THE COMPANY ONLY

2548/2005 2547/2004

5.8 0.5 ﬁmnumnﬁﬂia‘umﬂu
Cost plus margin

8.6 2.9 ﬁmnumnﬁﬂiﬁ‘umﬂu
Cost plus margin

0.3 - ﬁmnumnﬁﬂm‘umﬁu
Cost plus margin

0.1 = anneenidedesas 6.5
&y 7.0 sied
6.5 — 7.0 percent per annum

7.1 1.6 ﬁmnumﬂﬁﬂm‘umﬁu
Cost plus margin

6.8 45 ﬁmnumnﬁﬂm‘mtﬁu
Cost plus margin

2.1 48 ﬁmnumnﬁﬂm‘mtﬁu
Cost plus margin

6.1 5.0 ANTNLNATAZUTZNIDL

130 - 170 VFBLfan
Baht 130 - 170 per square
meter per month




aaﬂmﬁ’ﬁwamamﬁws’fﬂé’mmLLememn“[muaa The outstanding balances of the above transactions have been

@

o ufl 31 SunAN 2548 uaz 2547 ImefiTeasidendiod ; separately shown in the balance sheets as at

31 December 2005 and 2004 as follows : (e : 1)

(Unit : Baht)

JUNNTRWIIN JUNITRRRNIZIBIUIENY
Consolidated The Company Only

s v o §
aﬂw%ﬂ?qNﬂywuﬁ 2548/2005 2547/2004 2548/2005 2547/2004
Relationship

U3uneos

Subsidiary :
VIBN wianrium $1in - - 89,066 1,026,892
Promptnow Company Limited
U3t T 9%wn d1im - - 8,952 -
4Bizinet Company Limited
V3T wenud Sunadiand Tuidsuild s - - 13,871 -
Advance Intelligence Modernity Company Limited
w3 Tmesunled Suilindu wefinaa in - 2,749,484 - 2,749,484
M(I)dlernform Integration Services Company Limited

vIEniRedain

Related companies :
vish Tamesureunid S (amnaw) Aeviuuazn TN TN 173,565 - 32,325 -
Modernform Group Public Company Limited Common shareholders

and directors
v3sn Tawmesuredn vmaned $1ia gilevuuaznIsinn TN 16,455 - - -
Modernform Tower Company Limited Common shareholders
and directors

v3sn Taitw aluled 1in Hfleviudaniin 672,000 - 672,000 -
Motif Technology Company Limited Common shareholders

862,020 2,749,484 816,214 3,776,376

V3N wWIeNriua 31 - - 700,000 900,000
Promptnow Company Limited - - 700,000 900,000

Funsndlimamdendn - Suia
Other non-current assets - deposit
V3tiRe o :
Related company :
v3sn Tawesuredn vmied i AfioviuunznITinITindy 3,005,100 1,161,000 1,289,100 1,161,000
Modernfqrm Tower Company Limited Common shareholders
A iAok and directors
Amounts due to related parties
1IEneae :
Subsidiaries :
V3N wonriu 9nfin - - - 785,237
Promptnow Company Limited
3 IS D3 dm - - 7,725,841 2,354,000
4Bizinet Company Limited
V3 Tamedunladn Buiinsdu wefaus $1im - 1,252,286 2,140 1,252,286
Modernform Integration Services Company Limited
V3T wenud Sunadiand Tuidsuild s - - 42,800 -
Advance Intelligence Modernity Company Limited
U3t 18x. lo. e, w0 viTesady s1im - 2,301 - 2,301
M.I.S. Outsourcing Company Limited
V3tiiRedoie
Related companies :
v3gh Tamesureunid S (umnaw) Aeviuuazn TN TN 736,128 2,717,168 77,855 2,125,566
Modernform Group Public Company Limited Common shareholders
and directors
13 Tumesuradn ned $1in gilevuuaznITNn TN 253,750 130,770 152,622 130,770
Modernform Tower Company Limited Common shareholders
and dir(lactors
visn Taii walulad $1in yeyMIw 642,000 __ 2,407,500 642,000 2,407,500
Motif Technology Company Limited Common Shareholders

1,631,878 6,510,015 8,643,258 9,057,660
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7. AWAAUNED
INVENTORIES

(¥e : un)
(Unit: Baht)

JUNINUIIN JUNTRRRNIZIDILITENY
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY

2548/2005
fuddsagy
Finished goods

2,908,094 25,797,174

2547/2004  2548/2005 « 2547/2004

118,017,989 84,463,648 112,549,367 84,175,762

2,908,094

SUATETNINNN | 25,797,174
Goods in transit
398 143,815,163

87,371,742 138,346,541 87,083,856

Total

AunuiamlusunTnsednind
(ﬁunuﬁ’wuﬂﬂﬁLmimaé]’mﬁ’ry%mmu%ﬁ’mLﬂuﬁunmmmm’%mﬂwﬂ
FuTunaimenlUsunsndmiuedesiufinandeaneinie Iﬂﬂ@fuﬁ%
Fanamazdain iduaunsndsadnsmite wazen Lﬂuﬁmuﬁy’q’ﬁmu
ienuaSamudygn

ﬁm%’uﬁunuﬁwmmiLmimaw%ﬁ’weiaa*?‘imuagﬂi‘lmumiﬁmwLﬂu
G’f%“qu‘ﬂ@ﬂﬂiLLﬂiNﬁﬁW%’]ﬁGﬁiﬁ’ﬂ Wuduninduazazneesdnang
Wusumeleneld Tnefludeqiudegseninomaimmfmdy
v mlusnefiusdundenoudn

FurnsoTumaiiui dnssadasiu
viTnauazusEndesldinindndsesisaiunsiiusiwin 385
fIUUM UBT 38.9 AIUUM FANEIAL V[ﬂfgi"wﬂi:ﬁ’umﬁmﬁmﬁuﬁ’:y%
sz MIsanmisdersy fulneowians
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DEFERRED PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Deferred program development costs of the Company comprise
the cost of a new service, representing the development of a
fingerprint time attendant recorder. This cost is deferred as an
asset and will be recorded as expenses upon completion as

specified in the contract.

Deferred program development costs of the subsidiaries as included
in the consolidated financial statements represent the cost of

program development. This cost is deferred as an asset and will be
amortised to cost of sale when the programs are sold. At this time,
some programs are still undergoing additional development, while

some are ready to sale.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS AT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

These deposits at financial institutions of the Company and the
subsidiaries amounting to Baht 38.5 million and Baht 38.9 million,
respectively are pledged with the banks as collateral for overdraft

facilities and a bank guarantee provided by bank.




10. 1iuamud wuinggyilaeisauldife
RuanuluuigndendeiuiinleeiBamldide o Fui 31 Suanen 2548

WY 2547 HedH

To1TEN
Company's name

Hel h mpan:
UIBN wowviwnl 37
Promptnow Company Limited

U3 TS 9%wn sim
4Bizinet Company Limited

U3 uoprwd Sumnadiand
TaAsudia 7im

Advance Intelligence Modernity
Company Limited

U3 Tamedurladn Suiiinadu
g IaLTe 3100

Modernform Integration
Services Company Limited

'
a o S a o

s s a a o

6= o a

LIDNLTN AI0A

Held by Modernform Integra—
U3t 18w, le. ted.

o Wireisds s1in

M.I.S. Outsourcing Company
Limited

U3BN dneuand (1995) IR
SkyBlitz (1995) Company
Limited

azinnianig
Type of business

sEearardeTuioun
gunsoididnnIeding
Develops the entertainment
Applications on mobile device.

JUDANUUL WAL
Fnhelusunss
Tmiareesinresuasiuneiin
Designs and develops web-
based business Applications.

Fudnaden Wamuae
'«ﬁwwmﬂ‘[ﬂi‘ummauﬁama{
Tnamnnzfatiuife
Develops the entertainment
mobile games and Applica—
tions.

'«ﬁmmﬂméamayﬂama‘f
uaclusmafiiendes

Sale of computer and
provision of related services.

wim v uazdmbe
Lﬂ%mﬂauﬁdmaimx
IU‘ELLﬂiNﬂEJNﬂ’JLGla%
Production, import and sale
of computer and computer
software.

Fudnaden Wamua
FnhelUsunsuireniines
Develop and sale of
computer software.

10.

7.5

30.0

3.0

64.1

3.0

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER THE EQUITY
METHOD
Investments in subsidiaries accounted for under equity method as

at 31 December 2005 and 2004 were as follows :

(¥ive : un)
(Unit : Baht)

S RpET
Paid up capital

BRSNS
Investment proportion

2548/2005 2547/2004 2548/2005 2547/2004
_ F1mun &1muN &1mun
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
7.5 60.00 60.00
21.8 51.00 35.05
3.0 51.00 51.00
- 99.99 -
- 80.00 -
- 99.99 -

20.0
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lotuil & Swnew 2548 Aszgnimitnyifevuniert 4/2548 veeun
sneuand (1995) 1A ﬂmﬁau{ﬁﬁLﬁ'unmmmLﬁﬂmaw%ﬁ’wmmﬁu
5 dmum w20 dwumn Taenseendusdiydwan 1.5 dudu
yaduaz 10 U Tnefivdsh Tunefuredu Suwitnsdu irefisias S
m]”w%yaw:’mﬁ'unuéﬁﬂﬂ'nﬁgw”wmmﬁ'a%’nma”mﬂdmmiﬁaﬁmﬁu
U%ﬁwﬂaﬂﬁ’qﬂdﬂﬁmmLﬁsmmiLﬁ'unuﬁ’uns:mwww:ﬁm&ﬁﬁuﬁ 21
SUINAN 2548

FOUIEN

On 8 December 2005, the Extraordinary General Meeting No. 4/2005 of
the shareholders of Skyblitz (1995) Company Limited approved an
increase in its share capital from Baht 5 million to Baht 20 million through
the issuance of 1.5 million additional ordinary shares with a par value of
Baht 10 each. Modernform Integration Services Co., Ltd. purchased all
of the newly issued shares, in order to maintain its shareholding
percentage. The subsidiary company registered the increase in its share

capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 21 December 2005.

(¥e : un)
(Unit: Baht)

RHuamn
Investments

Company's name ABremu FBsmldide
Cost method Equity method
2548/2005 2547/2004 2548/2005 2547/2004

U3 wIeNviug 971 4,500,000 4,500,000 (1,200,270) 3,060,085
PromptNow Company Limited
u3un WS d%wmn e 15,300,000 7,650,000 17,761,618 8,596,510
4Bizinet Company Limited
V3 wemrmd dumadiand TuAsuid $1im 1,530,000 1,530,000 716,488 1,585,800
Advance Intelligence Modernity Company Limited
139 Tmesumedn Builinadu 1weisias shin 96,050,000 = 89,459,296 =
Modernform Integration Services Company Limited

RIpEY 117,380,000 13,680,000 106,737,132 13,242,395

Total
WIAWIBILSEN WIaNrin AR ﬁmﬁl,ﬁunu 1,200,270 -
Liability from investment in PromptNow Company Limited
78 (lwsunISumnnz ves3Emns) 107,937,402 13,242,395

Total (in the Company financial statements)

U%ﬁ‘mv[o’fﬁ“uﬁﬂmmaqﬁunumﬁaLSuamuﬁqqniwammuﬁ’zﬁmm
a o & Fa P o o a o o ¢
ﬁumwmm:wmum:ﬂm o Tuiidevesuiendesduiuninduay
nesgdinsvheanIsidunsneluszeziian 3 7 war 5 9 lesan
HeuTrIvesnIsnyiwityadivIsnydnedegeninyarinngyd
rouTundesazneliiindazloniunuisng Tuewanlugusesnisvens
gmqiﬁﬂﬁniﬁﬁmmzLﬂumﬂmﬂmmmmﬂumiﬁwmm”wej'ﬁumq
Ty vevuisneduseLiio

visnylddetrszeiuludumiditszliandndwm 765 &mum
Twioufiuan 2548 YilFadumstiodusesnTsny Tuuidn T D3uwn
A WNIuaInIeeay 35.05 Wndeeay 51
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The Company records the net excess of the cost of purchase over the
attributable portion of the book value of its identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date as an asset which is amortised over a
period of 3 years and 5 years since the Company's management
believes that such excess will generate future benefit in terms of the
expansion of business lines and the continuous expansion of

investment in intellectual properties of the Company.

The Company paid in the uncalled portion of the share price of 4Bizinet
Company Limited, amounting to Baht 7.65 million, in March 2005. As a
result of the Company's percentage shareholding increasing from 35.05
percent to 51 percent.
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EQUIPMENT
(Ae : un)
(Unit: Baht)
JUNTRUIIN
CONSOLIDATED
funng Fo3ugqo LATBIAN LAY inIavdiouay
TEHIN FUNIWeLT RSN qﬂﬂmi UL
ALEAN Leasehold Office NI Vehicles
Construction improvement furniture Tools and
in progress office equipment
AU
At cost :
31 DWINAN 2547 - 12,519,676 47,588,248 60,666,310 7,364,098 128,138,332

31 December 2004
Fulowanniaferiuamu
Tuu3meae - 3,158,210 4,795,537 13,169,775 6,922,935 28,046,457
Transferred from purchase of
investments in subsidiaries
%yal,ﬂlu 942,500 2,963,649 22,354,894 8,236,100 787,716 35,284,859
Acquisitions
e - - (1,104,511) (1,316,993) (874,766) (2,796,270)
Disposals
31 SUINAN 2548 942,500 18,641,535 73,634,168 80,755,192 14,699,983 188,673,378
31 December 2005
Adonmanasen :
Accumulated depreciation :
31 SUINAN 2547 - 5,357,681 23,300,451 43,916,975 971,849 73,546,956
31 December 2004
%UIa%ﬁl’lﬂﬂ’]i%a L'Tmamu - 2,789,024 3,991,341 10,984,556 3,862,885 21,627,806
Tuusdndes
Transferred from purchase of
investments in subsidiaries

Andanspd sy - 3,453,088 15,525,350 8,722,838 2,286,060 29,987,336
Depreciation for the year
AdanTAngasE s Ime - - (855,521) (963,431) (028,487)  (2,047,439)
Depreciation for disposals
31 BUINAN 2548 - 11,599,793 41,961,621 62,660,938 6,892,307 123,114,659
31 December 2005

yorgninmind

Net book value :
31 BUINAN 2547 - 7,161,995 24,287,797 16,749,335 6,392,249 54,591,376
31 December 2004
31 BUINAN 2548 942,500 7,041,742 31,672,547 18,094,254 7,807,676 65,558,719

31 December 2005
udonamdermeglueriily
neudmind
Depreciation charged to the
statement of eamnings for the

year
2547 22,362,845
2004
2548 29,987,336
2005

ool 31 Sunen 2548 gaehgnBanindldTnygadngninianiiyd  As at 31 December 2005, net book value includes assets under
gosdunindragnelifygntmimsiuwesiEgndessnwam 1.7 MU finance lease agreements of the subsidiaries with net book values
amounting to Baht 1.7 million.
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yardndewindudonenazanvesgninizesuisnduaruitndes
?ﬁqﬁﬂmLa’amwmﬁ\ﬁhmmé’aLLG}'é‘J’ﬂ%’muag} % UM 31 SWINAN 2548
TsunIRuT AT MUY TZIN 38.7 AULN (2547: 14.2 BULN)

The carrying amount, before accumulated depreciation, of equipment
which was fully depreciated but still in use as at 31 December 2005
amounted to approximately Baht 38.7 million (2004: Baht 14.2 million)
per the consolidated financial statements.

(¥ae  umn)

MY
At cost:

31 HWNAN 2547

31 December 2004

Fouin

Acquisitions

AMe

Disposals

31 BWINAN 2548

31 December 2005
Adonmaszen
Accumulated depreciation :

31 HWINAN 2547

31 December 2004

AdenTAndmsuil

Depreciation for the year

ANReNIIATD9E I

Asmie

Depreciation for disposals

31 HUINAN 2548

31 December 2005
yergninaind :
Net book value:

31 HWINAN 2547

31 December 2004

31 BWINAN 2548

31 December 2005
fudonsnaderamegluo
lanavudmiud
Depreciation charged to the
statement of earnings for the
year

2547

2004

2548

2005

I
AoLEAN
Construction
in progress

942,500

Lease hold
improvement

11,562,684

851,029

LAIBIANUEN

AU
Office
furniture

43,077,525

16,872,724

(123,571)

A3BiNauae
gﬂwnmi
AN
Tools and

office equipment

60,666,309

7,853,888

(343,529)

YIUNIUS
Vehicles

7,364,098

635,190

(Unit: Baht)

122,670,616

27,155,331

(467,100)

942,500

12,413,713

59,826,678

68,176,668

7,999,288

149,358,847

5,233,868

2,891,859

21,018,923

12,384,560

(81,863)

43,916,974

8,226,201

(129,665)

971,849

1,528,949

71,141,614

25,031,569

(211,528)

8,125,727

38,321,620

52,013,510

2,500,798

95,961,655

6,328,816

22,058,602

16,749,335

6,392,249

51,529,002

942,500

4,287,986

26,505,058

16,163,158

5,498,490

58,397,192

21,868,276

25,031,569

yadmniyinewdinadonnaszansesgninlvesnigng dovin
ANRONINANTIITIWILILAD LLGiéTosl%qmaq' o U 31 SwAN 2548
AUz 23.7 WU (2547 1 14.2 BAKLN)
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The book value, before deducting accumulated depreciation, of
equipment of the Company which was fully depreciated but still in use
as at 31 December 2005 amounted to approximately Baht 23.7 million
(2004 : Baht 14.2 million).




12. 8unsneladiaau
FunsndluddnuresuidnyuazusingsedsznaudlelusunTs
apnNweslnefiseazBundad

HOFGND - 31 DUNAN 2547
Net - 31 December 2004
%Ulaumnmﬁaﬁuﬂmu

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The intangible assets of the Company and its subsidiaries are

computer software as follows :

Transfer from purchase of investments in subsidiaries
v

TOLNN

Acquisitions

wn: Adndvves UL
Less: Amortisation for the year
HOFGND - 31 HUNAN 2548
Net - 31 December 2005

o oy d i g o2
mmﬂmvimwamuag‘[u\mmvlimﬂnummuﬂ 2547
Amortisation charged to the statement of earmnings

for the year 2004

13, duiiniAnigduesiiuddnszezduansoniuniain
LG%LﬂﬂLﬁ%‘fﬁy%uﬁ:LﬁuﬁgﬂizEJ:ﬁzuf\]WﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂuﬂﬂiLauégﬂﬂizﬁuIﬂﬂ
MI3huRIna0TwN I nIeuIENYLaz I Ende eI uiwn
38.5 HULIN UAY 38.9 AWLIN ANNEIAL

14, uEowiu

Twienduwien 2546 ‘ﬁ'ﬂi:‘qumﬁtyQﬁaﬁmmu'%gwﬂﬁﬁmﬁmgﬁﬁ

w‘\‘]unmmmLﬁammu‘%ﬁwﬁnmﬁu 20 fuum 1u 160 AU

Tnenseendumiiysuon 14 §1uu yarvuaz 10 1n Foudiny

V[,ﬁ‘i”usﬁﬁzﬁmﬁmmﬁﬁuﬁ 23 WOENAN 2546 U3WNYldannziden

mﬁLﬁunuﬁ\indﬂﬁurﬁxmwwwﬁmﬁﬁai’uﬁ 28 NOWNIAN 2546

Tuideufiguieu 2546 ﬁlﬂi:ﬂ;aﬁm Ty feriuvesuTsnglding

a%ﬁﬁi’lﬁﬂ’]iﬁdﬁiﬂiﬂﬁj :

- wsEnmuaEniuuisnamauinie

- Lﬂﬁ'EJuLLﬂaqagjaﬂ'wﬁ'mﬂi’ma\iﬁ’umﬁrymaou%ﬁmmnyjaﬁwﬁm:
10 v idugaeniuaz 1 v Wunaldiuaanzidensesuisy
T 160 F U uthoonidu 160 Suu e sz 1 UM

- Lﬁ'unmmwmﬂﬂmﬂmﬁu 160 AU i win 200 A uum
ImsmmanﬁumﬁmLﬁunuﬁi’mm 40 A urin Nﬂamﬁmﬂ”iﬁum
10

- Asnmahvuressisnadaangidendunannindaamziden
TuaaandnnSndurialszindlne

(¥e : un)
(Unit: Baht)
JUNNTRUIIN JUNTRRIRNIZIDILIENY
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY
3,603,529 3,293,382
178,222 -
6,020,790 1,017,672
(2,674,235) (1,575,496)
7,128,306 2,735,558
543,485 512,562

13. BANK OVERDRAFTS AND SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions have
been secured by the pledge of the Company and its subsidiaries

amounting to Baht 38.5 million and Baht 38.9 million, respectively.

14. SHARE CAPITAL
In March 2003, a resolution of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company's shareholders authorised the increase of the Company's
registered share capital from Baht 20 million to Baht 160 million
through the issue of 14 million additional ordinary shares at a par
value of Baht 10 each. The Company registered the increase in
share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 28 May 2003.

In June 2003, a resolution of the Extraordinary General Meeting of

the Company's shareholders authorised the following matters :

- To change the status of the Company to be a public limited
company.

- To change in par value of the Company's ordinary share from
Baht 10 per share to Baht 1 per share. As a result, the Company's
registered share capital of Baht 160 million comprises 160 million
shares of Baht 1 each.

- To increase of the Company's registered share capital from Baht
160 million to Baht 200 million through the issue of 40 million
additional ordinary shares, with a par value of Baht 1 each.

- To list the Company's ordinary shares in the Stock Exchange of
Thailand.
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15.

The Company registered the change in par value of its ordinary
share from Baht 10 per share to Baht 1 per share and the increase
of its registered share capital to Baht 200 million with the Ministry of

Commerce in July 2003.

In addition, in October 2003, the Company received additional share
capital from its initiate public offering of 40 million shares at Baht
4.75 per share through the Stock Exchange of Thailand, totaling
Baht 190 million. This amount is divided into issued and paid-up
share capital of Baht 40 million and premium on ordinary shares
of Baht 150 million. The Company has recorded the expenses
concerning the offering of its increased share capital of
approximately Baht 7.2 million as deduction in "Premium on

ordinary shares".

The Company registered the increase of its issued and paid-up
share capital to Baht 200 million with the Ministry of Commerce in

the same month.

On 25 April 2005, an Annual General Meeting of the Company's
shareholders approved an increase in the share capital of the
Company from 200 million shares to be 227 million shares through
the issuance of 27 million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht
1 each. The additional registered capital is to be reserved for the
exercise of the warrants totally 10 million shares and to pay for
the acquisition of the shares of Modernform Integration Services
Company Limited (MIS) totally 17 million shares. On 1 June 2005,
the Company issued a total of 17 million shares with a par value of
Baht 1 per share to pay for the acquisition of shares of MIS. The
shares are to be transferred at a price of Baht 5.65 per share,
a total of Baht 96.05 million. This includes share premium of Baht
79.05 million, and the expenses of issuing the shares amounting to
Baht 2.6 million, were deducted from such share premium.
The Company registered the resulting change in its paid-up capital
to Baht 217 million with the Ministry of Commerce on 3 June 2005.

WARRANT

On 25 April 2005, an Annual General Meeting of the Company's
shareholders approved to issue and offer of 10,000,000 registered,
non-transferable warrants free of charge to the directors and
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (ESOP). These
warrants are exercisable at a price of Baht 4 per share in a ratio of
1 warrant to 1 new ordinary share, every six months for a period not
over 3 years and 6 months from the issue date. The first exercise
date will be notified by the directors. However as at 31 December
2005, the Company did not issue and offer that warrants to their

directors and employees.
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16.

17.

18.

19.

STATUTORY RESERVE

According to the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535,
the Company is required to set aside a statutory reserve at least
5% of its net profit after deducting accumulated deficit brought
forward (if any) until the reserve reaches 10% of the registered
share capital. The reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration represents the benefits paid to the
Company's directors in accordance with Section 90 of the Public
Limited Companies Act, exclusive of salaries and related benefits
payable to executive position.

CORPORATE INCOME TAX

Corporate income tax for the years ended 31 December 2005 and
2004 have been calculated on the Company and its subsidiary's
non-promoted earnings (loss) for the period after adding back
certain provisions and expenses that are disallowable for tax
computation purposes, at the rate of 25 percent of earnings
up to Baht 300 million and 30 percent for its subsidiaries for

non-promoted earnings.

DIVIDEND
Dividends declared in 2005 and 2004 consist of the following :

(e un)
(Unit: Baht)

PPN
Total dividends

HuTunasderu
Dividend per share

Sutunaannmlsd 2547
Final dividends on 2004
earnings

TUN 25 LNWNEW 2548
Annual General Meeting
of the shareholders on
25 April 2005
Gutuwaanilat 2546
Final dividends on 2003
earnings

TUN 22 INWNEW 2547
Annual General Meeting
of the shareholders on
22 April 2004

20.ﬁnﬁﬁmw“"lﬁ'i’umnn'ndouﬁummmu

ol 18 ’NTAN 2548 UaY 6 dguwien 2548 L3N s Dfun

§rim FodunsdngesuazussnyldSuinsAAen1enEsmiy

ﬁmmwawmﬁmaTﬁWiziwﬁ'zyaﬁmLtﬁwmimnu W.A. 2520 BN 1K

TmﬂﬂmnﬁumidqLﬁ%umiamuﬁoﬁ :

- Idvenfun8duldddyraadmivilsgniiduszeziaudad
Tousufisndnel§annsznevians

- V[ﬁ’%’uamfﬂais’fmﬁwLﬁuﬂuwaﬁiﬁ%’mmﬁmmimLfﬁummmu
%ﬂﬁ%’umL”imnﬁﬁmlﬁ'ﬁﬁqﬂmmummn 31 Tusmdmnnuiaide
MEduldidyaan

sz yifevianilnyse

Mmlszyitevianilnydse

20.

100,000,000 0.50

66,000,000 0.38

PROMOTIONAL PRIVILEGES

On 18 January 2005 and 6 June 2005, 4Bizinet Company Limited,

a subsidiary company, and the Company were granted the

following tax privileges by the Board of Investment for certain

specified software service under the Investment Promotion

Act B.E. 2520 :

- Exemption from corporate income tax on net profit for a period
of eight years commencing as from the date of first earning

operating income.
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21.

- Dividends paid from the earnings of promoted operations which
are exempt from corporate income tax are in turn exempted from
inclusion in the determination of corporate income tax.

- Areduction of import duty on machinery as approved by the Board.

To be entitled to these rights and privileges, the Company and the
subsidiary company must comply with conditions specified in the

promotional certificates.

EMPLOYEES AND RELATED COSTS

(vivhe : un)
(Unit: Baht)

JUNTRUIIN LN TN WRNIZ TN LI ENY
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY ONLY
2548/2005 2547/2004 2548/2005 2547/2004
Tnpuniine m 708 392 412 325
Auaul (aw)
Number of
employees at end
of year (persons)
Fi'ﬂ%’ﬁ]"]gu,ﬁmﬁ'u 265,002 150,710 194,192 145,798
WHNw f1Asuil
(WiUN)
Employee costs
(Thousand Baht)
22. namua"namﬁrﬂoiw 22. PROVIDENT FUND

UIENY U%ﬁ’miaﬂLmzWﬁfﬂqﬂﬂﬁimﬁuﬁmﬁg\mamuﬁﬁaqLﬁyﬂﬁwiyu
maﬁé’miau‘,ﬁﬁmﬂmzmwmiﬂﬁqmmmzﬁﬁnﬁ'ngcﬁﬁnamuﬁﬁaq
Wesdn WA, 2530 dadszneudieinAintneuinesauuaziin
Aussny uazu3sndossneannulEludnandesas 3 i 7 109 3uiian
namuﬁﬁaqLf‘iyﬂﬁwﬁu%ﬂmﬂﬂﬂu%ﬁ'mé’nw%“wﬁﬁ'ﬂminamuﬁﬂﬁ Salel
LLasazﬁhﬂiﬁﬁ’uwﬁnmﬂmﬁrﬁﬁaanmnmummzLﬂﬂudﬂ@hﬂnamu
esUSENYLazUIEndes  TuszninedusemauasuSundesldesy
sanuidnasmuinwinEulizanm 3.4 & uum usz 0.2 Fuum
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o Fudl 31 wnew 2548 Avidernszfufleanlaeowians
Tusnusene mﬁaag&ﬂmﬁmuﬂixmm 269.6 BA1ULN
(2547: 57.6 AWM uaz lumNUSEmdesTua 1wl 6.5
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23.

The Company, the subsidiary and its employees have jointly
established a provident fund as approved by the Ministry of Finance
in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The fund is
contributed by the Company, the subsidiary and its employees at
the rate of 3 - 7 percent of their basic salaries. The fund is
managed by TISCO Asset Management Company Limited and will
be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the rules
of the Company and the subsidiary's staff provident fund. During
the year, the contribution of the Company and the subsidiary to the
fund totaled by approximately of Baht 3.4 million and Baht 0.2

million, respectively.

COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

23.1 Bank guarantees
As at 31 December 2005, in respect of certain performance
bonds required in the normal course of business, there were
outstanding bank guarantees issued by banks on behalf of
the Company of Baht 269.6 million (2004: Baht 57.6 million)
and bank guarantees issued on behalf of subsidiaries of Baht

6.5 million.
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ol 31 Bunen 2548 uaz 2547 USTMY fhedudude
Tasasintuswasudanitoduiaiulsiin 300,000 U
RorinaEzanlunI§sToduganan sz e

v
RPN
o TN 31 BwAN 2548 UIENY Hnnseyniwiiedtunng
Adsziwliunussndoasdalud ;

UIENeas
Subsidiaries

23.2

23.3

23.4

WEULTNART S
Overdraft facilities

Commitment

a)As at 31 December 2005, the Company and its
subsidiaries have outstanding lease commitments in
respect of office space of approximately Baht 26.6 million
(the Company only: Baht 11.8 million). This amount
includes commitments of Baht 3.2 million under
agreements which the Company has entered into with
a related company.

b) As at 31 December 2005, the Company has outstanding
payment commitments in respect of subcontract service

agreement of approximately Baht 8.6 million.

Credit card facility
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004, the Company has a credit
card facility of Baht 300,000 with a local bank for its

convenience in purchasing goods from overseas.

Guarantee
As at 31 December 2005, the Company had outstanding
obligations in respect of guarantees on behalf of the

subsidiaries as follows :

(¥e : um)
(Unit: Baht)

NHunIReA Iz AU WA

Letter of guarantee facilities

V3N weenviu $11in

PromptNow Company Limited

Uit T 9%wn ddn

4Bizinet Company Limited .

Uit Tuimesunesy duinsdiu
[wasias 91in

Modernform Integration Services
Company Limited .
V3t wemud Bunadiaud Tudsudia
il

Advance Intelligence Modernity
Company Limited
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24. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT
The Company and its subsidiaries' operations involve the single
industry segment of the distribution of computer and computer
system and its provision of related services for local and export
sales. Information in the earnings statements for the years ended

31 December 2005 and 2004 is below presented by geographical
segment :

(Unit : Million Baht)

For the years ended

31 December 2004 and 2003

Local Overseas Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Sales and service income

.
’UI
(=
©
.
F
=
—

2 1509 1.419
1

Earnings from operations _357 _360 357 361
Other income 9 9
Selling, administrative and (259) (188
interest expenses _ (B0 _w@n
Corporate income tax _ 77 _185

Net earnings

The balance sheet information as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 is

below presented by geographical segment :

(Unit : Million
Baht)

Local Overseas Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Trade accounts receivable - net = 445 768 - - 445 768
Inventories 144 87
Equipment - net 66 55
Other assets 303 121
Total assets 958 1,031
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
25.1 Financial risk management and policies
The Company and its subsidiaries do not hold or issue
derivative instruments for speculative or trading purposes.
25.2 Interest rate risk
The interest rate risk is the risk whereby future movements
in market interest rates will affect to the results of operations
and cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries. Such
exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to deposits at
financial institutions, bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions. The Company and its subsidiaries

do not use derivative financial instruments to hedge this risk.

JUNN3EKIIN / Consolidated
YONALARD th JWN 31 DWINAN 2548/Balance as at 31 December 2005

(e : un)
(Unit : Baht)

fisnnenide
USiuaemn
RIFRA
Floating
interest rate

el
nanide

ANl
Fixed
interest rate

Taid
aoniie
No interest

fonmanide agpl
USuduaemn | smenide Tast
MINFAA AT aoniie
Floating Fixed No interest
interest rate | interest rate
a s 6 a . .
AUNTNENNNITNY Financial assets
NUFALAE TN ITBULYINEUER Cash and cash equivalents 30,132,844 - 156,546 | 30,289,390
WunEnUBNIEUARN1TEAUTEA%  Pledged deposits at financial institutions 3,500,000 | 35,430,765 - 38,930,765
o - . .
Budniindndussiuddnszerin Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
INFNTUNITETU from financial institutions 56,648,654 | 3,000,000 - 59,648,654
JUNINUBANIZI09U3ENY / The Company Only e
YONALARD th JWN 31 DWINAN 2548/Balance as at 31 December 2005 (Unit : Baht)

2 v ¢ a

funindn1an1atn

WUHEALAZI18NILAg UL UER

WU nEnTwNIEIUAR NI AU TN
2n -

Budniiudndussiuddnszerin
INFNTBNNTIIN

Fi )

Cash and cash equivalents

Pledged deposits at financial institutions

Ei e

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions

12,019,805
3,500,000

38,021,046

35,010,009

102,932

12,122,737
38,510,009

38,021,046
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25.3

Foreign currency risk

The exposure of the Company to foreign currency risk
relates primarily to its trade accounts payable that are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Company utilises
forward exchange contracts, mostly with maturities of no more
than one year, in order to hedge the foreign currency risk
related to these payables, covering the full amount of such

liabilities.

Forward exchange contracts which remained outstanding

on 31 December 2005 are summarised below :

JUNNTRUTINUAZIUN T ANIZ DL TENY

AaaAsarigewsn (To)

anaLin
Currencies

RUAT AU T2 InAs 319w
Forward contract

exchange rate

1,337,334

USD (Buy)
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40.94 - 41.39

25.4

25.5

[ v
o A

grauanifeusNayITee TUNNATUNNARARNN YT N UAT

Jszinengntn (ﬁumn‘mﬁ‘lmuaa)
Period to Maturity
(from balance sheet date)

4 - 6 Lfiaw/months

The Company has not estimated the fair value of the above
forward exchange contracts since the individual contract
have a short period to maturity and their carrying value does
not materially differ from their fair value.

Credit risk and liquidity risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Company. Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that
customers may not be able to settle obligations to the

Company within the normal terms of trade.

However, due to the Company's prudent credit policy and
those customers' creditworthiness, the Company does not

anticipate material losses from its debt collection.

Fair value

Fair value is defined as the amount at which an instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
knowledgeable willing parties on an arm's length basis.
Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices,
discounted cash flow models or net asset value, as

appropriate.

Since the majority of the financial assets and liabilities are
short term, their carrying value does not materially differ from

their fair value.
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26.

27.

28.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 22 February 2006, a meeting of the Company's Board of
Directors passed a resolution to propose that the Annual General
Meeting of the Shareholders to be held in April 2006 adopt a
resolution to pay of a dividend of Baht 0.33 per share, or a total of
Baht 71.61 million, to the shareholders in respect of the 2005

earnings.

Such dividend will be paid and recorded after it is approved by the
Annual General Meeting of the Company's shareholders.

PRESENTATION

The presentation of these financial statements has been made in
compliance with the Notification of the Business Development
Department dated 14 September 2001, issued under the
Accounting Act. B.E. 2543.

Certain amounts in the financial statements of the year ended
31 December 2004 have been reclassified to conform to the
current year's classification, with no effect on the net earnings or

shareholders' equity previously reported.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were authorized for issue by Board of
Director on 22 February 2006.
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